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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone 

material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

Basis for Opinion

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

statements.

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

 

The Company has Indirect tax matters which are 
subject to assessments/ ongoing proceedings by 

the management in evaluating the likely outcome. 
The Company makes an assessment to determine 
the outcome of these tax positions and decides to 
make an accrual or considers it to be a possible 
contingent liability in accordance with the applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards.

We performed the following procedures in this 
regard:

• Obtained an understanding of the management’s 
process for monitoring these matters and the 

judgement of the likely outcome.

• Evaluated the design and tested the 
operating effectiveness of controls around the 
management’s assessment

• Assessed the appropriateness of methods 
used, reliability of underlying data used for 



100

DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Consequent to introduction of Goods and Services 
Tax (GST) with effect from July 1, 2017, there 
has been ambiguity with regard to chargeability of 
indirect tax, i.e. UP VAT or GST or any other tax, 
on certain supplies made by the Company to a 
customer and, therefore, no tax has been charged 
on such supplies. Various demands raised by the 
VAT/ GST authorities are being contested, and have 
been assessed for creating provision/ disclosures in 

The Company has recognaised a reimbursement 
asset based on a legal undertaking by the related 
customer to indemnify the Company for any liability 

The above judgements may change over time based 
on judicial precedents or amendments to legislation, 
etc. A change in the management’s judgement and 

assets and liabilities and disclosures thereof.

• Examined correspondence and obtained 

external legal counsel in order to corroborate 
our understanding of these matters with respect 
to the legal determination of liability arising on 
such matters.

• Involved our internal specialists to evaluate 
management’s assessment by reviewing 
the facts of the case, reasonableness of 
assumptions and making an assessment of the 
likely outcome of the matters.

• Examined management’s assessment including 
discussions with in house legal team in respect 
of recoverability of recognized reimbursable 
asset.

• Examined the underlying agreement, indemnity 

received from the customer as regards the 
recognition of reimburseable asset.

• Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made 
with respect to requirements of Ind- AS 37 
regarding the matter.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
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the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the paragraph 
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone 

under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
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 (ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly 

 (iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this 
audit report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

f. Based on our examination, including test checks, the audit trail (edit log) facility has not been 
enabled for the accounting software used by the Company for maintaining its books of account 
relating to general ledger.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limits laid down under Section 
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

 

Partner
Membership No.: 090075

ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYS7193
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Annexure A to  

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in 

the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Description of 
property value as at  

 
name of

relatives or 
employees

Period Reason for 

Company

Daurala, Uttar 
Pradesh 
– Freehold Land

379.04 DCM Limited No Since 
1991

Refer Note 
51 of the 
Standalone 

statements

Daurala, Uttar 
Pradesh 
– Freehold Land

44.95 Daurala 
Organics 
Limited

No Since 
2005

Refer Note 
51 of the 
Standalone 

statements

Kota, Rajasthan  
– Leasehold Land

465.00 DCM Limited No Since 
1991

Refer Note 
51 of the 
Standalone 

statements

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 
and rules made thereunder.
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year. For goods-in-transit, subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records. 

the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class 
of inventory.

 (b)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 

of the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or advances 

other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to its employees in respect 
of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us the Company has provided loans as below:

Particulars

Aggregate amount given during the year: Others (Employees) 34.94

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date: Others (Employees) 55.55

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year, and the terms and 
conditions of the grant of loans, prima facie, are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal 
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular. 
Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the 
year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of 
loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party 
during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling 
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security 

investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been 
complied with.
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(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 
to 76 or other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder where applicable and the 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable, with regard to deposits or amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits. As informed to us, there have been no proceedings before the Company 
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other 
tribunal in this matter and no order has been passed by any of the aforesaid authorities in this regard.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules 
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act 
in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination 
of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST.

  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account 
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise or Cess or other 
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities.

  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services 
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise 
or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise or Cess or 
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

statute
Nature of Amount 

amount relates dispute is 
pending

Amount 
paid under 

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax 3,088.74 2018-19 Income Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal

-

Central Excise 
Act,1944

Excise Duty 3.22 1995- 96 CESTAT, Delhi -

Central Excise 
Act,1944

Excise Duty 21.76 June 2017 CESTAT, Delhi -

Central Excise 
Act,1944

Excise Duty 3.54 June  1998  to February 
1999

High Court -

Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax 15.48 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-
11, 2013-14

High Court -

GST Act, 2017 GST 1.78 2017-18 Additional 
Commissioner

1.78
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statute
Nature of Amount 

amount relates dispute is 
pending

Amount 
paid under 

Central Excise 
Act,1944

Excise Duty 120.12 April 2014 to May 2015 High Court -

Central Excise 
Act,1944

Excise Duty 236.16 July 2012 to March 2014 High Court -

Sales Tax 
Laws#

UP VAT and 
CST

7,017.48 April 2019 to March 2020 Additional 
Commissioner 

(Appeals)

701.7

GST Act, 2017# GST 29,617.47 July 2017 to March 2018, 
2018-19,  

2020-21, 2021-22,  
April 2022 to 

September 2022

Joint 
Commissioner

1,163.47

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank 

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, 
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or 

 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 

the Act.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.



108

DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the course of the audit.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 

13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

 (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with 
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details 

by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

 (b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and 
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the 
Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by 
the management is accurate and complete.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding  

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of 
the Order is not applicable.

and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
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guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent 
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than 
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no ongoing 
project under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

 

Partner
Membership No.: 090075

ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYS7193
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Opinion

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
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and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

 

Partner
Membership No.: 090075

ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYS7193
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Particulars Note As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Rs. lakhs  
ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 59,250.32 
Capital work-in progress 3 220.61 
Right-of-use assets 40 1,313.15 
Intangible assets 4 238.16 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 5 3,260.51 
  (ii) Loans 6 62.82 

7 539.64 
Income-tax assets (net) 8 1,652.01 
Other non-current assets 9 5,405.74 

71,942.96 
Current assets
Inventories 10 63,482.91 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 11 2,835.35 
  (ii) Trade receivables 12 24,224.22 
  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 474.45 
  (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14 749.01 
  (v) Loans 15 19.18 

16 26,795.68 
Other current assets 17 2,162.88 
Asset held for sale 56 33.87 
Total current assets 1,20,777.55 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,92,720.51 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18 1,739.84 
Other equity 19 68,181.04 

69,920.88 
LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 20 7,331.01 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 40 1,096.68 

21 5,415.70 
Provisions 22 1,003.95 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 38 5,320.27 
Other non-current liabilities 23 58.85 

20,226.46 

Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 24 41,863.91 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 40 436.22 
  (iii) Trade payables 25
       -Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 1,215.71 
       -Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 26,258.86 

26 4,243.27 
Other current liabilities 27 1,549.09 
Provisions 28 27,006.11 
Current tax liabilties (net) - 

1,02,573.17 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,92,720.51 

2A

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024

Particulars Note For the year ended
 March 31, 2023 

 Rs. lakhs  

Revenue from operations 29 2,35,092.47 
Other income 30 1,688.50 
Total Income 2,36,780.97 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 31 1,30,589.30 
Purchase of traded goods 32 24,148.52 

33 3,366.21 
and work-in-progress

34 18,637.52 
Finance costs 35 3,341.81 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 3,588.52 
Other expenses 37 44,078.72 
Total expenses 2,27,750.60 

9,030.37 
Tax expense
Current tax 38 2,243.73 

Deferred tax 38 760.60 
3,004.33 
6,026.04 

(365.67)
127.78 

(237.89)

5,788.15 

43 6.93 

2A
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Particulars
1,739.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 - 

Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 - 

Particulars Reserve and surplus
Amalgamation 

reserve reserve
Capital 

redemption 
reserve

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings 

Total

1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 45,414.01 63,697.77 
- - - - 6,026.04 6,026.04 

Other comprehensive (expense) for the year net of tax - - - - (237.89) (237.89)
- - - - 5,788.15 5,788.15 

Final dividend on equity shares (Rs. 0.5 per equity share of 
nominal value of Rs. 2 each)

- - - - (434.96) (434.96)

Interim dividend on equity shares (Rs. 1 per equity share of 
nominal value of Rs.2 each)

- - - - (869.92) (869.92)

1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 49,897.28 68,181.04 

Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax

Interim dividend on equity shares (Rs. 2 per equity share of 
nominal value of Rs.2 each)

Nature and purpose of reserve

a. Amalgamation reserve
Amalgamation reserve had been created on amalgamation of Daurala Organics Limited with the Company.

c. Capital redemption reserve
Created on redemption of preference shares as per requirements of the Companies Act, 1956.

d. Securities premium
Securities premium has been created on account of the premium received on issue of shares and capital and reorganisation 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. Retained earnings

2A

The notes referred to above form an integral part

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  
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Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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For the Year ended
March 31,2023

Rs. Lakhs
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  9,030.37 

 Adjustments for : 
  Depreciation and amortisation  3,588.52 
  Finance costs  3,341.81 
  Interest income  (44.92)
  Interest income against subvention  (290.81)

 (16.38)
  Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back  (342.20)
  Bad debts and advances written off  10.10 

 (43.98)
  Net gain on fair value of investments  (66.29)

  15,166.22 

 Changes in assets and liabilities 
  Increase in trade payables  966.66 

 6,529.95 
  Increase in other liabilities & provisions  9,492.37 
  (Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  1,260.74 
  (Increase) in inventories  (213.31)

 (10,969.49)
  (Increase) in other assets  (3,739.32)
 Cash generated from operations  18,493.82 

 Income tax paid (net)  (1,584.67)

 Net cash from operating activities ( A )  16,909.15 
  
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
   Capital expenditure on acquisition of items of property, plant and equipments 

and intangible assets, including capital work in progress
 (4,955.00)

  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets  161.99  97.39 
  Investments in mutual fund (net)  (4,403.78)
  Advance to wholly owned subsidiary for share capital  (331.61)
  Investment in equity shares - non current  (133.92)
  Investment in equity shares of wholly owned subsidairies  (329.36)
  Proceeds from sale of current investments  2,669.48 
  Changes in bank deposit  (4.98)
  Changes in other bank balances  (94.23)
  Interest received  37.18 
 Net cash used in investing activities ( B )  (7,448.83)
  
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  Proceeds from long term borrowings  1,351.15 
  Repayment of long term borrowings  (7,532.17)
  Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)  1,126.16 
  Repayment of Lease Liabilities  (449.42)
  Finance costs paid (Net of subvention)  (3,017.26)
  Dividend paid  (1,293.02)

  (9,814.56)
  
 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (354.24)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  828.69 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  474.45 
  
 Components of cash and cash equivalents 
 Balances with scheduled banks: 
  - Current accounts  457.90 
 Cash in hand  16.55 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  474.45 
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activities :

Particulars Current Total

Opening balance as at April 1, 2022  20,815.96  33,572.92  1,777.67  56,166.55 
 (7,788.42)  (135.15)  (598.01)  (8,521.58)

Non-cash changes due to:
- Interest expense (net of subvention)  1,641.10  1,261.31  -    2,902.41 
- Finance cost on lease liability  -    -    148.59  148.59 
- Lease liability recognised  -    -    204.65  204.65 

Closing balance as at March 31,2023  14,668.64  34,699.08  1,532.90  50,900.62 

and interest accrued thereon, refer Note 21 and 26.

# This does not include current maturities of loan term borrowings

Notes

2A
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1 Corporate Information 

Building, 18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi – 110001. The Company is primarily engaged in production 

have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the 

Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable. The accounting 

These Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, are 
approved by the Company’s Audit Committee and by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2024.

Company’s functional currency. All amounts are in Rupees lakhs with two decimal points rounded-
off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise stated. 

historical cost convention, except for the following items:

Items

Investments in Mutual Funds

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market 
conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated, using another 
valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively. Financial reporting results rely on the estimate of the effect of certain 
matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecast and the best 
estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The management believes that the estimates used 

and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.

statements includes:

and (c).

2A(h)

lease term- Note 2A(n)

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between 
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has 

liabilities as current and non-current.

normal operating cycle,

a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
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All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. 

Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working 
condition for its intended use and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time 

the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the 
asset. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its 
use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are 
met. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any. 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other 
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition and location for their 
intended use, and the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the 
site on which they are located. Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalised up 

borrowings have been used for the asset.

useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal 

from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book 
value and net realizable value. Any gains or losses arising on disposal of property, plant 

related to the incidental operations not necessary to bring the item to the location and the 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

The cost of property, plant and equipment as of April 01, 2016, the Company’s date of 
transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value recognised as per 
the previous GAAP (deemed cost).

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset 

the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured.
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Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method as per the useful 
lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold improvements are 
amortised on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of lease. Leasehold land (being 
in the nature of perpetual lease) and freehold land are not depreciated. 

and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. 

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below: 

Type of asset

Leasehold improvements Lease term

Buildings 5-60 years

Plant and equipment 10-40 years

Vehicles 8-10 years

5 years

10 years

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost 
of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price including duties and taxes and any 
costs directly attributable to making the assets ready for their intended use. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

derecognised.

or loss as incurred.

The amortisation method and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and 
adjusted, as necessary.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is ascertained on a 
‘weighted average’ basis. 

Cost includes direct materials, labour, freight inwards, other direct cost, a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, net of refundable duties, levies 
and taxes, wherever applicable.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and estimated costs, necessary to make the sale.

Assessment of net realisable value is made at each reporting date. When the circumstances that 
previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear 
evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the 
amount so written-down is adjusted in terms of policy as stated above.

Appropriate adjustments are made to the carrying value of damaged, slow moving and obsolete 
inventories based on management’s current best estimate.

The cost of production (including cost of conversion) of joint products is allocated on such joint 
products based on a rational and consistent basis, i.e., relative realisable values at the separation 

By-products are valued at estimated net realizable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

  i. Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products is 
transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts and rebates. The Company collects Goods and services tax on behalf of 

Hence, these are excluded from the revenue. At contract inception, the Company assesses 
the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and identify, as a performance 
obligation, each promise to transfer to the customer. 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods or services are 
transferred to customers and the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold. 
The timing of the transfer of control of products to customers at the time of dispatch, during 
shipment or receipt of goods by the customers which vary based on individual terms of the 
sales agreements.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted 

the contract with the customer. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that 
the entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the 
entity’s right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of 
time is required before payment of the consideration is due. 

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received or due, whichever is earlier. 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

  ii.  Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services are recognised over a period of time as and when 
underline services are performed as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes 
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received as per the credit terms in the agreements with the customers. Where the credit 

completion of the job work.

-   Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction 

elements such as volume discounts, price concessions and incentives. Any consideration 
payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for 
a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable 
consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable 

is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements 
of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is 
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

time and judgement is exercised in determining the same.

Interest income are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method, when the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding. Dividends income from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established. 

Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in 
equity or in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

• Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or 
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous 
years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. 
It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously.

are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current 
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

• Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
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- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that effects neither accounting nor 

-  temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the 
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

-  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax 

against future income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 

against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 

will be available against which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 

that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover 
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off 
against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as a deferred tax asset is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no 
longer exists.

basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

no legal and constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to 
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extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan 
assets. 

eligible employees. In accordance with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity plan 
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or 
termination of employment. These are funded by the Company and are managed by the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

for each plan using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service 

on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity 
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 

the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI 

subsequent periods.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is 

from the plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan. To calculate the present 

requirements.

occurs.

that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in the 
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Government)

the Government which are made to the Trusts administered by the Company are accounted 
for on the basis of actuarial valuation. The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust 
is not considered to be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central 
Government under the Employees Provident Funds and, Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
and shortfall, if any, based on actuarial estimate by an approved actuary, is made good by 

obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. 

arise.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate, 
and presented within other income (operating or non-operating, as appropriate) other than export 

uncertainty in receiving the same. 

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred 

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

are presented in INR which is Company’s functional and presentational currency. 

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional 
currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or at an average 
rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are 
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/ losses arising on account 
of realisation/ settlement of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign 

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

from changes in fair value are taken directl
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tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is greater of its value in use and its fair 

assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 

less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. If no such transactions can be 

recoverable amount is determined in relation to the CGU to which a corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its 

Loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts 
of the assets of the CGU.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. 

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is 

Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost 
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 
provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on assets associated.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will 

be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent 
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the change occurs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

the borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses 
them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is 
computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during 
the period and used for the acquisition of the qualifying asset. 

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include 
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes a Right of Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, 
except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets in 
accordance with Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a 
lease, at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 

assesses whether: 

period of the lease and the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs, etc. Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use asset 
is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter 
of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets unless the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use 

of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and 
equipment. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 

the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Company measures the lease 
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liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily 
determined. If that rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using 
the incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an 
option to purchase the underlying asset. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, 
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is 

zero. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before 
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is 
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The Company uses a single discount rate to a 
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as a lessor

their nature. 

attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding at the end of the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus / rights issue, if any, that have changed 
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. 

The Executive Committee, primarily comprising Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time 

Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. Refer Note 39 for 
segment information.

Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources 
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment 

Unallocable items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated 
to any business segment.
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Segment policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted 

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in 

to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these 

Initial recognition and measurement

AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2A (e) Revenue recognition. 

by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade 
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

categories:

a) At amortised cost

c) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
d
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 

applies to trade and other receivables.

meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so 

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present 
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such 

is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income. This 

instruments.

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiary and associate are carried at cost less any 
provision for impairment.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

-  Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

-  Financial assets measured at FVTOCI – debt instruments.

Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all 

from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 

initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative 
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and 
informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information. 

observable data:
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•  a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;

recognition of expected lifetime losses.

such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 

method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement 

and Loss.

Offsetting

Sheet only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Derecognition

asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Balance 
Sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

  For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 

investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 

overdrafts. 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the 
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially 

resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in 

accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per 
the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Goods and services tax input credit is recognised in the books of account in the period in which 
the supply of goods or service received is recognised and when there is no uncertainty in availing/
utilising the credits.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, 
except:

1. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

2. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, the net amount 
of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 
or payables in the Balance Sheet.

is intended to be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. The 

is available for immediate sale and the same is highly probable of being completed within one year 

as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated.

2A. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as issued from time to time. 

the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

(Rs. lakhs)

Total

year 

Projects in progress - - - 

Total - - - 

As at March 31, 2023

Projects in progress 220.61 - -  -   220.61 

Total 220.61 - - - 220.61 

@ Refer note 51 for details of immovable properties which are not yet endorsed in the name of the Company. 

Notes: 

1)  For contractual commitments with respect to Capital work-in-progress, refer note 41 (B). 

2)  For details on property, plant and equipment & capital work-in-progress mortgaged/charged against  
borrowings, refer note 53. 

3)  Borrowing cost capitalised during the year Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023- Nil) with a capitalisation rate of Nil  
(March 31, 2023- Nil) 

4)  Leasehold lands are in the nature of perpetual lease. 

(Rs. lakhs) 

Particulars

Balance as at March 31, 2022 546.83 

Add: Additions during the year  2.12 

Less: Disposals / adjustments / capitalized during the year  2.39 

Add: Additions during the year  

Less: Disposals / adjustments / capitalized during the year  - 

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 222.94 

Add: Amortisation expense for the year  87.83 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  2.37 

Add: Amortisation expense for the year  

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  - 

Net carrying value 

As at March 31, 2023 238.16 

Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.
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5.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Daurala Co-operative Development Union Limited
2 (March 31, 2023 - 2) equity shares of face

0.00 

Zyrone Dynamics Havacilik Danismanlik ve Ar-Ge Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
9,797 (March 31, 2023-9,797) equity shares of face value of 1 Turkish 
Lira each, fully paid up

314.50 

Daurala Foods & Beverages Private Limited
75,00,000 (March 31, 2023 - 75,00,000) equity shares of face value of 
Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

447.40 

DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited
10,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023-10,00,00,000) equity shares of face value 
of Rs. 2 each, fully paid up

2,000.00 

DCM Shriram International Limited
50,000 (March 31, 2023-50,000) equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 
each, fully paid up

1.00 

DCM Hyundai Limited
19,72,000 (March 31, 2023 - 19,72,000)
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 166.00 

2,928.90 

DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited (Refer note 55) 331.27 
DCM Shriram International Limited (Refer note 55) 0.34 

331.61 

Total 3,260.51 

3,260.51 

6.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Loans to employees 62.82 
Total 62.82 

Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good)
- to related parties (refer note 45) 30.98 
- Others 487.74 
Bank deposits 
- with more than 12 months maturity - 
-  held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and  
   other commitments

20.10 

Interest accrued on term deposits 0.82 
Total 539.64 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Advance income tax (net of provision) 1,652.01 
Total 1,652.01 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

9.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

 Capital advances 24.00 

 Capital advances 6.17 
Advance other than capital advances

 Deferred rent 2.96 3.33 
 Government dues paid and recoverable (refer note 52) 5,309.18 
 Balance with government authorities 4.18 
 Advances to employees 40.06 
 Prepaid expenses 18.82 

Total 5,405.74 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

Inventories

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
12,639.17 

Work in progress 1,927.85 
42,019.79 

Stores and spares 6,896.10 
Total 63,482.91 

# The write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 786.21 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 445.46 lakhs)

Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.
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11.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

1,326.72  (March 31, 2023: 23,916.09) HDFC Liquid Fund – Growth 1,057.86 

Direct Plan Units of Rs. 1000 each

5,71,951.25 (March 31, 2023: 2,30,362.72) ICICI Prudential Liquid 767.53 

Fund – Growth Direct Plan Units of Rs. 100 each

33,122.67 (March 31, 2023: 28,665.21) SBI Liquid Fund – Growth 1,009.96 

Direct Plan Units of Rs. 1000 each

Total 2,835.35 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,835.35 

12.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Unsecured, considered good 24,224.22 

Unsecured, considered credit impaired 34.97 

24,259.19 

Less : Loss allowance for trade receivables 34.97 

Total 24,224.22 

Particulars Not due

years years years
Total

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good  9.62 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have  

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

- Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good

 
 increase in credit risk

- Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired

Total  9.62 
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As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 457.90 
Cash on hand 16.55 
Total 474.45 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months
but upto twelve months
- earmarked deposits held as margin money or security against 538.12 
  borrowings, guarantees and other commitments
Earmarked balances with banks – unclaimed dividend accounts 210.89 

Total 749.01 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

15.

As at 
 

As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Loans to employees (including accrued interest) 18.56 
Others 0.62 
Total 19.18 
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

Particulars Not due

years years years
Total

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good  23,139.08  988.30  4.82  8.67  7.62  0.70  24,149.19 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

- Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good  -    -    -    75.03  -    -    75.03 

 
 increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

- Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired  -    -    -    10.10  -    24.87  34.97 

Total  23,139.08  988.30  4.82  93.80  7.62  25.57  24,259.19 

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 46.
Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.
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16.

As at 
 

As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Security deposits - 

Interest accrued on term deposits 52.66 

Government grant receivable 151.62 

Reimbursement assets (Refer note 52) 26,312.70 

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months

- earmarked deposits held as margin money or security against

  borrowings, guarantees and other commitments - 

Other receivables 299.95 278.70 

Total 26,795.68 

Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

 Advances to contractors 272.51 

 Advance to employees 22.76 

 Balance with government authorities 1,049.20 

 Duty drawback and other incentive receivables 76.07 

 Prepaid expenses 322.31 

308.76 

 Other receivables 111.27 

Total 2,162.88 

Refer note 53 for information on assets charged as security by the Company.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

32,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each (March 31, 2023: 32,50,00,000 
of Rs. 2 each) 

6,500.00 6,500.00 

8,69,92,185 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up (March 31, 2023: 
8,69,92,185 of Rs. 2 each) 1,739.84 1,739.84 
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Particulars As at  March 31, 2023 

 Amount  Number  
of shares 

Amount  
Rs. lakhs 

At the commencement of the year 8,69,92,185 1,739.84 

Add: Shares issued - - 

8,69,92,185 1,739.84 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
equity shares held by the shareholders. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend, if 
proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, except 
in case of interim dividend.

Particulars As at  March 31, 2023 

 
 

Number of  
shares  

@ Rs. 2 each 

% of holding  

1,63,21,115 18.76 

1,33,03,540 15.30 

HB Portfolio Limited 60,21,756 6.92 

67,84,840 7.80 

S. 
No.

Promoter Name

year year 

1 Lily Commercial Private 1,63,21,115 18.76 3.61%

2 Versa Trading Private 1,33,03,540 15.30 3.22%

Bantam Enterprises Private 67,84,840 7.80 - 

39,66,285 4.56 - 

5 32,12,900 3.69 - 

6 Aditi Dhar                                                  500 0.00 - 

Akshay Dhar                                                 500 0.00 - 

Divya Shriram                                               435 0.00 - 

Total 
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Limited, Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited and HR Travels Private Limited into and with the Lily Commercial Private Limited 
with effect from 1 April 2023 (which is the appointed date under the scheme) has been approved by the NCLT. 

There were no buy back of shares, issue of shares by way of bonus shares or issue of shares pursuant to contract without 
payment being received in cash during the previous 5 years.

19.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

a. Amalgamation reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,411.38 

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 13,465.60 

c. Capital redemption reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 0.10 

d. Securities Premium 

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,406.68 

e. Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 45,414.01 

6,026.04 

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained 
earnings

(237.89)

Less: Appropriations

Final dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs.  Nil 
per share of nominal value of Rs. 2/- each (March 31, 2023:  
Rs.  0.5/- per share of nominal value of Rs. 2/- each)]

(434.96)

Interim dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs. 2/- per share 
of nominal value of Rs. 2/- each (March 31, 2023: 

(869.92)

Rs. 1/- per share of nominal value of Rs. 2/- each)]

49,897.28 

Total 68,181.04 
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As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Unsecured loans

Public deposits 437.04 

Secured loans

Term loans from banks 13,109.57 

Term loans from others 469.71 

Unsecured loans

Public deposits 479.52 

14,495.84 

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings 7,164.83 

Total 7,331.01 

Secured loans

Term loans from banks 6,793.10 

Term loans from others 115.07 

Unsecured loans

Public deposits 256.66 

7,164.83 

A. SECURED 

a) Rs.271.21 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.1,356.04 lakhs) carrying interest of 5% p.a., repayable in 3 monthly 

Company excluding assets on exclusive charges.

b) Nil (March 31,2023: Rs.267.19 lakhs), Nil lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.180.18 lakhs) and Rs.1,039.98 
lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.2,076.41 lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR, repayable in 

properties of the Company excluding assets on exclusive charges. 

c) Rs.2,916.89 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.4,338.97 Lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR 

immovable and movable properties of the Company excluding assets on exclusive charges. 

d) Rs.1,736.47 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.2,941.50 lakhs) carrying interest of 8% p.a., repayable in 18 monthly 

of the Company, excluding assets on exclusive charges.

e) Nil (March 31,2023: Rs.333.26 lakhs) and Rs.156.25 (March 31,2023: Rs.781.25 lakhs) carrying interest 
rate of 8.95% p.a., repayable in 1 quarterly instalment, were/are secured by residual pari-passu charge on 
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arrangement of the Company. There is no movement in the provision during the year.

21.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 28.28 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.08 

Deposits from contractors and others 10.29 

Due to customer (refer note 52) 5,331.53 

Other payables 44.52 

Total 5,415.70 

22.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

- Compensated absences 903.95 

100.00 

Total 1,003.95 

f) Rs.145.12 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.762.90 lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR and 
spread thereon with 50% interest subvention on part of the loan, repayable in 1 quarterly instalment, is 

of the Company. 

g) Rs.900.00 lakhs (March 31,2023: Nil) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR and spread thereon, 

Works - Sugar & Alcohol division, a unit of the Company. 

h) 
interest of 8.50%, repayable in 45 monthly instalments.  

i) Rs.346.15 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.445.05 lakhs) carrying interest linked to RBI’s Bank rate minus 2%., 

properties of sugar factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company. 

ii) 
interest of 6.63%, repayable in 6 monthly instalments.

B. Unsecured 

Rs.902.86 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.916.56 lakhs), deposits from public, carries interest between 9% p.a to 10% p.a., 
are currently repayable after 3 years from the date of acceptance of deposits.

C. 
the Company.
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As at As at 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Other payables 58.85 
Total 58.85 

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Secured loans

34,699.08 
Current maturities of long term borrowings  (refer note 20) 7,164.83 
Total 41,863.91 

property, plant and equipments), both present and future. Some of these are further secured by way of second pari-passu charge on 
the divisions's property, plant and equipment. These carry interest rates ranging from  5.00% to 9.50% p.a. (March 31, 2023: 1.25% 
to 9.50% p.a.). Also refer note 53.

25.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
1,215.71 

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises# 26,258.86 
Total 27,474.57 

Particulars Not due^
 

1 year
 Total

- MESE  908.05  401.63  -    -    -   
- Others  4,691.34  25,630.33  10.53  36.27  2.28 
- Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total

Particulars Not due^
 

1 year
 Total

- MESE  24.82  1,190.89  -    -    1,215.71 
- Others  1,735.38  23,842.62  676.92  3.94  -    26,258.86 
- Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total

# Includes payable to related parties Rs. 208.52 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 113.36 lakhs), refer note 45. 
^ Includes unbilled dues. 

Notes: 

a) Includes acceptances Rs. 6,816.34 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 4,097.96 lakhs). 
b) The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 46. 
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26.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 32.77 

Employees related payable 481.67 

Dividend payable - 

Dividend payable - 

Creditors for capital purchases 312.51 

Security deposits 476.42 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 110.67 

210.89 

- Deposits from contractors and others 600.38 

- Employees related payable 1,954.71 

- Other payables 63.25 

Total 4,243.27 

Companies Act, 2013 as at the year end.

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Advances from customers 487.23 

Statutory dues payable 907.03 

Other payables 154.83 

Total 1,549.09 

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

- Compensated absences 604.37 

- Provident fund trust 89.04 

26,312.70 

Total 27,006.11 

 
Rs. 10,579.45 lakhs). Consequently, the provision for contingencies of Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 
(Rs. 15,733.25 lakhs as at March 31, 2022) has increased to Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as on March 31, 2024. 
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29. Revenue from operations

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Sale of products@   
Export 48,434.05 
Domestic 1,78,524.11 

2,26,958.16 
Sale of services@
Processing charges 5,733.65 

2,32,691.81 

Sale of scrap 971.94 
1,057.57 

62.21 197.27 
Other operating income 173.88 
Total 2,35,092.47 

@ Refer note 39 for disaggregation of revenue

As at As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

24,224.22 

Advances from customers  (Refer note 27) 487.23 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Contracted price  2,33,126.53 
Less: Discounts 434.72 

2,32,691.81 

The amount of Rs. 329.02 lakhs included in contract liabilities at March 31, 2023 has been recognised as revenue 
during the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 488.75 lakhs)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products is transferred to the customer. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates.

Invoices are generated at that point in time. Invoices are usually payable within 180 days.

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

From deposits with banks 44.56 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.36 

290.81 
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  Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back 342.20 
  Rental income 101.28 

16.38 
43.98 
66.29 

676.56 
  Miscellaneous income 106.08 
Total 1,688.50 

Cost of materials consumed

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Raw materials at the beginning of the year 9,494.16 
Add: Purchases 1,33,734.87 

1,43,229.03 
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year 12,639.73 
Total 1,30,589.30 

Particulars of materials consumed are as under:
Sugarcane 82,556.37 
Wood pulp 11,145.76 
Others 36,887.18 
Total 1,30,589.30 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Grain spirits 24,148.52 
Total 24,148.52 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Opening stock
Finished goods 44,745.27 
Work-in-progress 2,568.58 
Total 47,313.85 

Closing stock
Finished goods 42,019.79 
Work-in-progress 1,927.85 
Total 43,947.64 

3,366.21 
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Finished goods 2,725.48 
Work-in-progress 640.73 

3,366.21 

Sugar 33,913.56 
Alcohol 827.24 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 441.20 

6,837.79 
Total 42,019.79 

Sugar 640.74 
Alcohol 194.49 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 518.49 

574.13 
Total 1,927.85 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
16,274.10 

1,882.42 
Staff welfare expenses 481.00 
Total 18,637.52 

# Includes payment to contractual labour

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
3,270.97 

Other borrowing costs 70.84 
Total 3,341.81 

# includes Rs.143.62 lakhs interest on lease liabilities (March 31,2023: Rs.148.59 lakhs)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 3,061.48 
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 4) 87.83 
Amortisation on right-of-use assets (refer note 40) 439.21 
Total 3,588.52 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
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 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Consumption of stores and spares 11,738.42 
Power and fuel 11,818.00 
Commission to selling agents 2,655.10 
Freight and transport 2,221.81 
Insurance 314.88 
Rates and taxes 394.52 
Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings 826.46 
- Plant and machinery 5,838.13 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note below) 180.11 
Rent (refer note 40) 62.97 
Payments to auditors
- Statutory audit fee 59.00 

37.50 
3.50 

- Out-of-pocket expenses 6.99 
Provision for doubtful debts 10.10 

2,012.56 
Professional expenses 1,216.75 
Miscellaneous expenses 4,681.92 
Total 44,078.72 

a)  Amount approved by Board of Directors required to be spent by the 
Company during the year

 187.22 

b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - 
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 175.13 

12.09 

d) Nature of CSR activities  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
(i) Promoting health care including preventive health and sanitation 22.93 
(ii) Promoting education, including special education and employment 52.62 
(iii) Empowering women and support to senior citizen 3.08 
(iv) Environmental sustainability and conservation of natural resources 
and maintaining quality of soil, air and water

21.40 

(v) Promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts 21.94 
10.00 

(vii) Training to promote rural sports 5.90 
(viii) Contribution to Prime Minister's National Relief Fund and PM 
CARES Fund 

18.75 

(ix) Rural development project 13.01 
(x) Amount spent in administrative overhead 6.25 5.50 

175.13 

e) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure (refer note 45)
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Income tax expense

 A. 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

(Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Current tax expense  2,243.73 

Tax relating to earlier years  -   

Total tax expense  2,243.73 

Deferred tax charge  760.60 

 3,004.33 

 B. 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

(Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Income tax

 127.78 

 127.78 

 C. 

 
year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

(Rs. Lakhs)

  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

 Rate  Amount  Rate  Amount 

 8,664.70 

Tax based on domestic tax rate 34.94%  3,027.79 

Tax effect of:

Tax relating to earlier years 0.00%  -   

Non-deductible expenses 0.73%  62.94 

Impact on deferred tax due to change in tax rate for future years (3.10)%  (268.86)

Others 0.63%  54.67 

Effective tax rate 33.20%  2,876.55 

# The Company continues to pay income tax under the old tax regime and has not opted for lower tax rate pursuant to 
Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (Section 115BAA of The Income Tax Act, 1961) considering the accumulated 

measured considering the revised rate.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Particulars  Opening  Recognised 
in statement of 

income 

 Closing 

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses deductible on payment  307.15  (45.20)  -    261.95 
Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences  311.42  (20.03)  127.78  419.17 

Loss allowance for trade receivables  8.66  3.56  -    12.22 
Loss allowance for other assets  8.38  (0.90)  -    7.48 
Others  150.35  (5.86)  -    144.49 

 785.96  (68.43)  127.78  845.31 

Difference in written down values as per books and 
as per tax laws of property, plant and equipment/ 
intangible assets

 (7,360.11)  (674.00)  -    (8,034.11)

Others  (6.64)  (18.17)  -    (24.81)
 (7,366.75)  (692.17)  -    (8,058.92)

Total  (6,580.79)  (760.60)  127.78  (7,213.61)

 As at    As at   
March 31, 2023 

Amount Amount
2030-31  273.41 
2032-33  996.93 
2033-34  623.00 

 1,893.34 

Operating segments

A. Basis for segmentation

In accordance

reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The CODM monitors the operating results separately 
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement (Refer Note 2A(p)).

Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided to the segments, which 

In addition to the material accounting policies applicable to the business segments as set out in note 2A(p) above, 
the accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

a)  Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue and expenses are, generally, directly attributable to the segments. Joint revenue and 
expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis.

b)  Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating trade 
receivables, inventories and property plant and equipment and intangible assets, net of allowances and provisions, 
which are reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and 
consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities and do not include deferred income taxes and borrowings. 
While most of the assets / liabilities can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain 
assets / liabilities pertaining to two or more segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company's reportable segments:
Sugar Comprising sugar, power and alcohol
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 For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs 
i. Total income

Total revenue for reportable segments  2,36,318.26

 Unallocated amounts: 

 Unallocable income  462.71 

 Inter-segment elimination  -   

 Total income  2,36,780.97 

 
 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs 
ii.

 16,022.83 

 Unallocated cost: 

 Finance costs  (3,341.81)

 Other unallocated amounts  (3,650.65)

  9,030.37 

 
 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs 
iii. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments  1,81,244.99 

 Unallocated amounts: 

 Investments  6,095.86 

 Corporate assets  5,379.66 

  1,92,720.51 

 As at  
 

 As at 
March 31, 2023  

Rs. Lakhs
iv.

Total liabilities for reportable segments  65,283.55 

 Unallocated amounts: 

 Share capital  1,739.84 

 Reserves and Surplus  68,181.04 

 Unallocated corporate liabilities   57,516.08 

  1,92,720.51 

D.
The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenues and assets by the country of domicile (i.e., 
India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the 
geographic location of customers and segment assets.
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  For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
i. Revenue from operations

 1,86,658.42 

     Europe  17,784.26 
     China  17,841.97 
     Rest of the World  12,807.82 

 48,434.05 

(c) Inter-segment elimination  -   

 2,35,092.47 

 As at  
 

 As at 
March 31, 2023  

Rs. Lakhs
ii. Assets

Non-current segment assets
(a) India  69,982.20 
(b) Outside India  -   

 69,982.20 

Non-current segment assets include property, plant and equipments, right-of-use assets, capital work in progress, 
intangible assets and other non current assets.

E.

Revenue from one customer of the Company's sugar segment represented Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023:  
Rs. 37,380.49 lakhs) of the Company's total revenue. 

Leases

The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company are as follows:
(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Opening as on Additions Deletions 

year

Depreciation 

year

Net carrying 
amount as at  

Building  1,313.15  644.46  -    472.08  1,485.53 

Particulars Opening as on Additions Deletions 

year

Depreciation 

year

Net carrying 
amount as at  

Building  1,549.85  348.71  146.20  439.21  1,313.15 

The Company incurred Rs. 33.12 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.62.97 lakhs) towards expenses relating to leases of 
low-value assets.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the 
balance sheet at the date of initial application.
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Particulars As at 
 

As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Opening balance  1,777.66 
Additions  350.86 
Deletions  (146.20)

 148.59 
Payment of lease liability  (598.01)

Particulars As at 
 

As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Within one year  436.22 

 900.56 
 196.12 

 1,532.90 

A.

Particulars As at 
 

As at 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Income tax matters  4,797.75 
Excise and Service tax matters  28.52 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding 
claims by employees, where amounts are not ascertainable)

 968.08 

Sales tax matters  15.46 
Sugarcane related matters  4,545.26 
Total  10,355.07 

ultimately concluded, are not likely to, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the results of the 

B. Commitments

a. Capital commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for (net of advances) amount aggregating to Rs. 250.92 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 99.42 lakhs) relating to Property, 
plant and equipment.

b. Other commitments: The Company has other commitments, for purchase / sales orders which are issued after 

union agreement in the normal course of business. The Company does not have any long term commitments / 
contracts, including derivative contracts, with any material foreseeable losses.

Hon’ble Company Law Board (now National Company Law Tribunal), pending since November 2007, had been 
dismissed as withdrawn in the hearing held on March 07, 2023.

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:
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shareholders of the Company, by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars Unit   For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

 6,026.04 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year

 8,69,92,185 

Nominal value per share Rs.  2  2 
Basic and diluted earnings per share Rs.  6.93 

Rs. 201.03 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 180.88 lakhs) for provident fund contributions and Rs. 254.02 lakhs (March 
31, 2023: Rs. 247.35 lakhs) for superannuation and national pension scheme fund contributions have been charged 

of the schemes. 

a)  Liabilities for gratuity, privilege leaves and medical leaves are determined on actuarial basis. Gratuity liability is 
provided to the extent not covered by the funds available in the gratuity fund.

Gratuity scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, while in employment, 

employment.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Non current  -   
Current  (308.76)

 (308.76)

The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of gratuity liability and its 
components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,114.35 
Current service cost  275.83 
Interest cost  297.05 

 (44.85)
Actuarial loss arising from changes in experience adjustments  195.89 

 (377.79)

 4,460.48 
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(ii) Reconciliation of the plan assets
The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of the plan assets and its components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,617.53 
Expected return on plan assets  333.38 
Contribution by the Company  15.34 

 (25.49)
Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income  (171.52)

 4,769.24 

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Current service cost  275.83 
Interest cost  297.05 
Expected return on plan assets  (333.38)
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income  322.56 

 562.06 

iv) Constitution of plan assets
Particulars

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs
 4,769.24 

maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not made available and have, therefore, not been disclosed.

v) Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets  (171.52)
 44.85 

Actuarial (loss) arising from changes in experience adjustments  (195.89)
 (322.56)

vi)  Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Discount rate 7.38%
Future salary growth 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.22%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)  17.33 

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2%
Above 44 years- 1%

Retirement age 58 years and 60 years
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2023: 13.76 years)

24: Rs. 221.81 lakhs).

Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to the 
complexities involved, the valuation is highly sensitive to the changes in assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 

planned service cost were measured using the projected unit cost method.

The Company has established an income tax approved irrevocable trust fund to which it regularly contributes to 

per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation is within the permissible limits prescribed 
in the insurance regulations.

expected salary increase.

Particulars  
 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate variation of 0.50%  169.62  (141.56)  151.47 
Future salary growth variation of 0.50%  153.40  (144.57)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

based on past service as at the valuation date:

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Within 1 year  916.51 
1 year to 5 years  1,466.82 
More than 5 years  2,077.15 

C.
The obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Company as at March 31, 2024 works 
out to Rs. 1,447.55 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,269.86 lakhs)

D. Provident fund:

fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust’s investments over the administered interest rates on an annual basis. 
For other employees contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioners. The Government 

make good the shortfall, if any, between the yield on the investments of the trust and the yield mandated by the 

valuation.
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(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Net Provident Fund liability  89.04 

(i) Reconciliation of the provident fund liability

The following table shows a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of provident fund liability and 
its components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  14,263.70 

Current service cost  506.76 

Contribution by plan participants / employees  1,119.47 

Interest cost  1,154.85 

 (0.99)

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in experience adjustments  (7.97)

 (1,195.96)

 15,839.86 

(ii) Reconciliation of the plan assets

The following table shows a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the plan assets and its 
components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  14,178.20 

Expected return on plan assets  1,154.85 

Contribution by the Company  506.76 

Contribution by plan participants / employees  1,119.47 

 (1,195.96)

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income  (52.07)

Shortfall funded by the Company  39.57 

 15,750.81 

The plan assets consitute investments in Central / State Government Securities, Corporate / PSU / Bank Bonds, 
Mutual Funds and Special Deposit Schemes.

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Current service cost  506.76 

Net cost  506.76 
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iv)  Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income  (43.11)

v)  Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Discount rate 7.38%
Expected statutory interest rate 8.15%

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2%

Above 44 years- 1%
Retirement age 58 years and 60 years

Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to the 
complexities involved, the valuation is highly sensitive to the changes in assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 

planned service cost were measured using the projected unit cost method.

as under:

Particulars  
 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate variation of 0.50% (3.64) 3.81

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

disclosed.
E. Risk exposure

reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
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A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this shall be partially off-set by increase in 
return as per debt investments.

participants. An increase in the life expectancy will increase the plan’s liability.

Related party disclosures:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties 
where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, 

 
Daurala Foods and Beverages Private Limited
DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited
DCM Shriram International Limited (w.e.f. September 07, 2022)

 Associate

DCM Hyundai Limited

Mr. S. B. Mathur, Chairman
Mr. Alok B. Shriram, Senior Managing Director
Mr. Madhav B. Shriram, Managing Director
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar, Director
Mr. Vineet Manaktala, Director & CFO
Mr. P. R. Khanna, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)
Mr. Ravinder Narain, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)
Mr. S. C. Kumar, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)
Smt. V. Kavitha Dutt, Independent Director
Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Independent Director 
Mr. Y. D. Gupta, Vice President  & Company Secretary
Ms. Mini Ipe , LIC Nominee Director (upto January 03, 2024)
Mr. Manoj Kumar, Non-executive Director
Mr. Kamal Kumar, LIC Nominee Director (w.e.f March 15, 2024)

Mr. Akshay Dhar
Ms. Kanika Shriram
Mr. Rudra Shriram
Mr. Rohan Shriram
Mr. Uday Shriram
Ms. Umika Shriram
Ms. Kislaya Rakesh
Ms. Anita Gupta
Ms. Kiran Khanna
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M/s. P. R. Khanna (HUF)
M/s. Lala Bansi Dhar & Sons (HUF)
Ms. Suman Bansi Dhar
Ms. Divya Shriram
Ms. Karuna Shriram
Ms. Aditi Dhar
Ms. Amita Manaktala
Ms. Astha Manaktala
Mr. Mohit Manaktala
Ms. Ruby Arora

 Trusts

Employees’ Provident Fund Trust, DCM Shriram Industries Limited
Daurala Organics Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust
DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust

Bantam Enterprises Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)
H.R. Travels Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited (Formerly Hindustan Vaccum Glass Private Limited)
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited
Lily Commercial Private Limited
Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)
Fives Cail – KCP Limited
Versa Trading Limited (upto March 07, 2024)
Absolut Info Systems Private Limited
Brienworks Services Private Limited

Particulars   
 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Rent expenses
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  195.97 
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  22.94 
H.R. Travels Private Limited  6.89 
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  0.90 
Brienworks Services Private Limited  -   
Total  226.70 

Interest expense
Key management personnel  13.59 
Relatives of Key management personnel  32.16 
Independent Directors and their relatives/HUF  3.67 
Total  49.42 

DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  5.46 
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited  8.68 
Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.30 
Total  14.44 
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Particulars   
 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.25 
DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited  2.41 
Absolut Info Systems Pvt Ltd  0.25 
Total  2.91 

Purchase of stores
Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.77 
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited  4.53 
Total  5.30 

DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited  659.63 
DCM Shriram International Limited  0.34 
Total  659.97 

Capital Advances 
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  24.00 

DCM Shriram International Limited  1.00 

Associate  0.10 
Key management personnel  4.96 
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  9.53 
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  101.77 
Lily Commercial Private Limited  236.28 
H.R. Travels Private Limited  48.20 
Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited  59.49 
Versa Trading Limited  193.53 

 653.86 
Security deposits paid
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  5.31 

Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  5.31 
Total    5.31 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  289.86 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  289.86 
Ms. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  289.86 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  73.14 
Mr. Y. D. Gupta  48.96 
Relatives of key management personnel  197.48 
Total   A  1,189.16 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  3.86 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  1.74 
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar  3.20 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  7.37 
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Particulars   
 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Mr. Y.D. Gupta  6.34 
Relatives of key management personnel  5.57 
Total   B  28.08 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  5.66 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  6.02 
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar  6.05 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  2.62 
Mr. Y.D. Gupta  1.67 
Relatives of key management personnel  0.05 
Total   C  22.07 

Commission to Independent Directors
Mr. P. R. Khanna  13.41 
Mr. S. B. Mathur  14.24 
Mr. Ravinder Narain  11.77 
Mr. S. C. Kumar  13.41 
Ms. Kavitha Dutt Chitturi  12.59 
Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar  10.95 
Ms. Mini Ipe  9.30 
Mr. Manoj Kumar  10.95 
Total D  96.62 
Total compensation paid to key management 
personnel 

 1,335.93 

 1,626.23 

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund Trust  15.34 

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust  173.93 

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel 30.98 

DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited  331.27 
DCM Shriram International Limited  0.34 

Capital advances
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  24.00 
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DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  -   

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  -   

Lily Commercial Private Limited  -   

Key management personnel  118.70 

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  341.89 

Independent Directors & their relatives  37.50 

Total    498.09 

Provisions

Daurala Organics Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust  89.04 

Remuneration to key management personnel  9.72 

Commission to Independent Directors  96.62 

Commission to key management personnel  481.67 

Sitting fees to Indepdendent Directors  7.02 

Note:

Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, to 
be settled in cash except advance for share capital (refer note 55)

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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Particulars Carrying value
Amortised 

cost
Total Level 1 Level 2

  (i) Investments  -    -    3,260.51  -    -    3,260.51 
 -    -    62.82  -    -    -   
 -    -    539.64  -    -    -   

Current

 Debt instruments (Mutual funds) 2,835.35  -    -    2,835.35  -    -   
 -    -    24,224.22  -    -    -   
 -    -    474.45  -    -    -   
 -    -    749.01  -    -    -   
 -    -    19.18  -    -    -   

 16.84  -    26,778.84  16.84  -    -   
Total

  (i) Borrowings (including   
 current maturities)#

 -    -    14,495.84  -    -    14,495.84 

 -    -    1,096.68  -    -    -   
 -    -    5,415.70  -    -    -   

Current 
  (i) Borrowings#  -    -    34,699.08  -    -    -   

 -    -    436.22  -    -    -   
 -    -    27,474.57  -    -    -   
 -    -    4,243.27  -    -    -   

Total

Particulars Carrying value
Amortised 

cost
Total Level 1 Level 2

  (i) Investments  -    -    3,671.79  -    -    3,671.79 
 -    -    35.82  -    -    -   
 -    -    588.27  -    -    -   

Current

 Debt instruments (Mutual funds) 3,358.92  -    -    3,358.92  -    -   
 -    -    27,587.24  -    -    -   
 -    -    1,876.40  -    -    -   
 -    -    1,186.26  -    -    -   
 -    -    19.73  -    -    -   
 -    -    33,484.77  -    -    -   

Total

  (i) Borrowings (including   
 current maturities)#

 -    -    8,482.43  -    -    8,482.43 

 -    -    1,136.19  -    -    -   
 -    -    5,771.27  -    -    -   

Current 
  (i) Borrowings#  -    -    42,753.38  -    -    -   

 -    -    531.21  -    -    -   
 -    -    31,680.46  -    -    -   

 0.67  -    5,556.88  0.67  -    -   
Total

ii. (Rs. Lakhs)

i. (Rs. Lakhs)
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and remaining maturities to discount the future payout).

various parties, loans and advances to employees and bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the 

the fair values as on the reporting date.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 
31, 2023.

 

(a) The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers 
of these mutual fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which 
the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund, and the price at which issuers will redeem such units.

(b) The fair value of all derivative contracts is determined using forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Investments  6,095.86 
Trade receivables  24,224.22 
Cash and cash equivalents  474.45 
Other bank balances  749.01 
Loans  55.55  82.00 

 27,335.32 

principally from credit exposure to customers relating to receivables. The Company continuously reviews the credit 
to be given and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade receivables are from parties with whom the 
Company has long standing satisfactory dealings. 

Particulars
As at  

 
As at  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

 932.73 
91 to 180 days past due  61.53 
More than 180 days past due #  125.85 
Not due  23,139.08 

 24,259.19 
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# The Company continuously reviews the credit to be given and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of 
the trade receivables, both domestic and overseas, are from parties with whom the Company has long standing 
satisfactory dealings. The Company also makes provision for lifetime expected credit loss, based on its previous 
experience of provisions/write offs in previous years.

 al (Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of the year  24.87 

Impairment loss (reversal) / recognised  10.10 

 34.97 

Note

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally transacts with the banks with high 
credit ratings assigned by domestic and international credit rating agencies.

fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company’s reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances 
other than cash and cash equivalent of Rs. 3,062.66 as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 Rs. 1,223.46 lakhs), 
anticipated future considering internally generated funds from operations fully available and revolving undrawn 
credit facility will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, 

enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The Company will continue 
to consider various borrowing or leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements, as 
necessary.

 The Company’s liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

From banks  7,283.17  12,096.29 
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gross and undiscounted: (Rs. Lakhs)
Carrying 
amount

upto 5 years
 

5 years
Total

 7,331.01  -    7,354.88  -    7,354.88 
 Lease liabilities 1,096.68  -    1,009.29  228.35  1,237.64 

5415.70  -   5415.70  -    5,415.70 

 Borrowings 41,863.91  41,863.91  -    -    41,863.91 
 Lease liabilities 436.22  555.09  -    -    555.09 
 Trade payables 27,474.57  27,474.57  -    -    27,474.57 

4,243.27  4,243.27  -    -    4,243.27 
Total

(Rs. Lakhs)
Carrying 
amount

upto 5 years
 

5 years
Total

 Lease liabilities 

 Borrowings 
 Lease liabilities 
 Trade payables 

Total

prices. Market risk comprises two types of risks: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company.

 Currency risk

 Exposure to currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees 
(Lakhs) as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars
USD EURO AUD

 8,543.16  5,792.26  -    -   
Advance to contractors  23.89  20.93  -    -   

Trade payables  8,472.36  718.74  -    0.67 
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(Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars

USD EURO AUD

 7,935.07  1,991.11  -    -   
Advance to contractors  8.58  2.92  1.75  -   

Borrowings  1,347.38  68.08  -    0.62 
Trade payables  7,358.08  840.01  -   

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at  

outstanding as at the year end.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian 
Rupees against following foreign currencies:

 USD 
 EUR 
 AUD 
 GBP                

 USD  (7.62)  7.62  (4.96)  4.96 
 EUR  10.86  (10.86)  7.06  (7.06)
 AUD  0.02  (0.02)  0.01  (0.01)
 GBP                 (0.01)  0.01  (0.00)  0.00 

 2.11 

USD: United States Dollar, EUR: Euro, AUD: Australian Dollar, GBP: Great British Pound

risk by hedging transactions that are expected to occur within a period of 1 to 24 months for hedges of forecasted 
sales, purchases and capital expenditures. When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, 
the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of 

are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign 

value is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the reporting date and present value calculations based 
on high credit risk quality yield curves in the respective currency.
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The following table details the foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Outstanding 
contracts

No of deals Contract value of   
Nominal amount  

As at  
 

As at  As at  
 

As at  As at  As at  As at  As at  
 

USD/INR Sell 
Forward

 21  68  56.50  75.70  4,728.76  6,261.90  -    -   

EUR/INR Sell 
Forward

 15  9  42.98  10.00  3,919.32  893.46  -    -   

EUR/USD Sell 
Forward

 -    8  -    10.18  -    880.11  -    -   

USD/INR Buy 
Forward

 -    1  -    1.00  -    82.40  -    -   

 Impact of depreciation / appreciation in INR against USD/EUR in respect of forward contracts is not material.

 Interest rate risk

interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which 

 Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises mainly from the borrowings (including Cash Credit) from banks carrying 

Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period 

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents  1,186.26  749.01 
Other Financial assets  2,516.72  73.58 
Total  822.59 

Term loans  2,510.08  5,953.64 
Public Deposits  902.86 916.56

Term loans  5,069.49  7,625.63 
Cash Credit  42,753.38  34,699.08 
Total

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 

particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.                (Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars

Interest on term loans                                  (50.69)                           50.69                        (32.98)                         32.98 
Interest on cash credits                                (427.53)                         427.53                      (278.14)                       278.14 

Interest on term loans                                  (76.26)                           76.26                        (49.61)                         49.61 
Interest on cash credits                                (346.99)                         346.99                      (225.74)                       225.74 
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 Research and development expenses amounting to Rs. 617.10 lakhs  (March 31, 2023: Rs. 491.48 lakhs) have been 
charged to the respective revenue accounts. Capital expenditure relating to research and development amounting to 
Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 8.25 lakhs) has been included in property, plant and equipment.

follows:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

(a) Amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED (suppliers) 
as at the end of year.

- Principal amount  1,215.71 

-Interest due thereon  -   

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 
of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each.

 -   

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 -   

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounting year.

 -   

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 -   

Particulars As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Borrowings                            51,235.81                    49,194.91 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents                             (1,876.40)                       (474.45)

                           49,359.41                    48,720.46 
                           79,746.02                    69,920.88 

Capital management

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in the economic/ 
business conditions and requirements.

The  Company also monitors its capital structure through gearing ratio, represented by debt-equity ratio (Net debt/
Total equity). The gearing ratio for the Company as at the end of reporting period is as follows:            

 (Rs.Lakhs)
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The government grants/assistance recognised are as under:

Nature of grant/assistance Income/ 
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Subvention on loan interest Other income  108.26 
Interest subsidy in respect of Loans at concessional 
rate

Other income  182.55 

Duty drawback and other incentives (net of provision) Other operating 
revenue

 1,057.57 

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Amount as 
on  

Amount 
as on  

director or 
relative of 

promoter/director 
or employee of 

promoter/director

Property 

since company

Land situated at Daurala, 
Uttar 
Pradesh (UP)

379.04 No 1991 Vested in the Company 
pursuant to a Scheme of 
Arrangement of erstwhile 
DCM Limited. (Undisputed)

Land situated at Kota, 
Rajasthan

465.00 No 1991 Vested in the Company 
pursuant to a Scheme of 
Arrangement of erstwhile 
DCM Limited. (Undisputed)

Land situated at Daurala, 
UP

44.95 No 2005 Vested in the Company 
pursuant to merger of 
Daurala Organics Limited 
under sections 391 to 394 
of the Companies Act, 
1956 in terms of approval 
of Honorable High Court. 
(Undisputed)

Total 888.99

52. Consequent to introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from July 1, 2017, there has been ambiguity 
with regard to chargeability of indirect tax, i.e., UP VAT or GST or any other tax, on certain supplies made to a party 
and, therefore, no tax has been charged on invoices raised for such supplies. The Hon’ble Allahabad High Court in 
the year 2021-22 has held that no VAT is chargeable on such transactions. However, this issue is sub-judice before 
the Hon’ble Supreme Court in a similar matter. The buyer has provided an undertaking to indemnify the Company 

this regard.

The State VAT Authorities had completed assessments for the periods July 1, 2017 to October 31, 2020 and raised 
demands on the Company. These assessments have been cancelled after the Hon’ble Allahabad High Court order, 
except for the year ended March 31, 2020, which is pending disposal before the VAT Tribunal, and the VAT demand 
raised amounting to Rs. 6,528.32 lakhs in respect of that year has been stayed by the Tribunal. The Company has 
deposited  amounts aggregating Rs.3,417.52 lakhs under protest in respect of the aforesaid VAT matters for the 
periods July 1, 2017 to October 31, 2020. 
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During the previous year, GST demands aggregating Rs. 29,617.47 lakhs were raised in relation to these transactions 

being contested. The Company has deposited  amounts aggregating Rs.2,249.50 lakhs as of March 31, 2024  
(Rs. 1,891.66 lakhs as at March 31, 2023) as duty under protest in respect of GST, shown as ‘Government dues paid 
and recoverble’ under ‘Other non-current assets’.

Further, GST Council in its meeting dated October 7, 2023 has ceded the right to tax such supplies to State 

treatment in respect of the transactions as in previous year(s) and the Company has recognized a provision for 
contingencies of Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs as at March 31, 2023) under 
Provisions (current). Basis the undertaking from the buyer, the Company has recognized corresponding 
reimbursement assets amounting to Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs as at  

The amounts aggregating Rs. 5,667.02 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs.5,309.18 lakhs as at March 31, 2023) paid 

The carrying amount of assets charged as security for current and non-current borrowings are as under: 

Note As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Current assets
Inventories 10  63,482.91 
Trade receivables 12  24,224.22 
Cash and cash equivalents 13  297.39 
Other bank balances 14  480.23 
Loans 15  8.99 

16  479.41 
Other current assets 17  1,655.73 

 90,628.88 

Property, plant and equipment 3  59,250.32 
Capital work-in progress 3  220.61 
Intangible assets 4  238.16 
Loans 6  32.68 

7  462.57 
Income-tax assets (net) 8  78.77 
Other non-current assets 9  96.57 

 60,379.68 
 1,51,008.56 

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 14 November, 2023 approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement 
(the Scheme) between DCM Shriram Industries Limited and DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited and DCM Shriram 
International Limited (wholly owned subsidiaries of DCM Shriram Industries Limited) and Lily Commercial Private 
Limited, for amalgamation of Lily Commercial Private Limited with DCM Shriram Industries Limited, and subsequent 
demerger of Chemical and Rayon businesses of DCM Shriram Industries Limited into DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals 
Limited and DCM Shriram International Limited, respectively, with effect from the appointed date of 1 April 2023, 
subject to regulatory and statutory approvals, as applicable. The Scheme is presently under consideration of 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). Pending the necessary approvals, which are 
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55. a)   During the previous year, the Company subscribed to 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each in DCM Shriram 
Fine Chemcials Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, including conversion of advance against 
equity Rs. 1,670.64 lakhs as on March 31, 2022. Additional advance of Rs. 411.27 lakhs has been given during 
the year and, accordingly, an amount of Rs. 742.55 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 331.27  lakhs) has been shown 

 b)   During the previous year, the Company subscribed to 50,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each in DCM Shriram 
International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Additional advance of Rs. 0.34 lakhs had 
been given during the previous year and, accordingly, an amount of Rs. 0.34 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 

measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell at the reporting date.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Building  33.87 

Particulars Numerator Denominator

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities  1.2  1.2 3.1%

(b) Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity  0.6  0.7 (8.8)%

(c) Debt Service Coverage Earnings available Scheduled Debt 
Service

 2.4  1.4 66.7%

taxes
Average 
Shareholders' Equity

15.4% 8.9% 72.5%

Cost of goods sold Average Inventory  1.8  2.5 (28.3)%

(f) Trade Receivable Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue Average Trade 
Receivables

 8.0  9.5 (15.0)%

(g) Trade Payable Turnover 
Ratio

Purchases and 
other expenses

Average Trade 
Payables

 5.8  6.6 (11.8)%

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio^ Revenue Working Capital  8.2  12.9 (36.6)%

Total Income 5.5% 2.5% 114.6%

Earning before 
interest and taxes

Average Capital 
Employed #

22.4% 13.8% 62.3%

(k) Return on Investment@ Income generated 
from 
investments

Time weighted 
average 
investments

7.3% 5.6% 30.6%

# Tangible net worth + Long term debt + Deferred tax liabilities 

@ Increase on account of change in yield.

^ Decrease mainly due to lower revenue

i)  The Company does not have any benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated against the Company 
for holding any benami property.

ii)  The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

iii)   Details of charges / satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC).
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Pending 
Satisfaction/
Registration

Location of 
Registrar

Amount of 
 

Reason for delay in satisfaction

Satisfaction A charge created with 
serial number R36032811, 
charge ID 80000572 on 
31st March 1978 and 

on 18th March 2020 in 
favour of Oriental bank 
of Commerce, Transport 
Nagar, UP-250002, India.

New Delhi  2,450.00 The loan has been repaid fully on the due 

received from the lender. Requisite papers 

The said charge was created in FY 1978 
(by erstwhile DCM Ltd) and was transferred 
to the Company in the year 1990, pursuant 
to reconstruction arrangement of erstwhile 
DCM Ltd. There is a technical issue at ROC 
for online updation of satisfaction, which is 
under discussion with ROC. 

v)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

vi)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

vii)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

are approved by the Board of Directors.

Accordingly, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) 
has one CIC remaining as part of the Group.    

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based 

fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 

Basis for Opinion

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditor(s) referred to in paragraph (a) 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

The Holding Company has Indirect tax matters 
which are subject to assessments/ ongoing 

judgement by the management in evaluating the 
likely outcome. The Holding Company makes an 
assessment to determine the outcome of these 
tax positions and decides to make an accrual or 
consider it to be a possible contingent liability in 
accordance with the applicable Indian accounting 
standards.

We performed the following procedures in this 
regard:

• Obtained an understanding of the 
management’s process for monitoring these 

management’s judgement of the likely 
outcome.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Consequent to introduction of Goods and Services 
Tax (GST) with effect from July 1, 2017, there has 
been ambiguity with regard to chargeability of 
indirect tax, i.e. UP VAT or GST or any other tax, 
on certain supplies made by the Company to a 
customer and, therefore, no tax has been charged 
on such supplies.

Various demands raised by the VAT/ GST authorities 
are being contested, and have been assessed for 
creating provision/ disclosures in the consolidated 

The Company has recognises a reimbursement 
asset based on a legal undertaking by the related 
customer to indemnify the Holding Company for any 

The above judgements may change over time based 
on judicial precedents or amendments to legislation, 
etc. A change in the management’s judgements and 

assets and liabilities and disclosures thereof.

• Evaluated the design and tested the 
operating effectiveness of controls around the 
management’s assessment.

• Assessed the appropriateness of methods 
used, reliability of underlying data used for 

• Examined correspondence and obtained 

external legal counsel in order to corroborate 
our understanding of these matters with 
respect to the legal determination of liability 
arising on such matters.

• Involved our internal specialists evaluate 
management’s assessment by reviewing 
the facts of the case, reasonableness of 
assumptions and making an assessment of the 
likely outcome of the matters.

• Examined management’s assessment 
including discussions with in house legal 
team in respect of recoverability of recognized 
reimbursable asset.

• Examined the underlying agreement, indemnity 

received from the customer as regards the 
recognition of reimburseable asset.

• Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made 
with respect to requirements of Ind-AS 37 
regarding the matter.

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit report of 
other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation 
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in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 

the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of each 
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

or business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated 

which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 4,057.74 lakhs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues 

adjustments) amounting to Rs. 303.15 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 

the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in 
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and 
associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

done and the reports of the other auditors.
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2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

those books and the reports of the other auditor(s) except for the matters stated in the paragraph 
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 

under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
as on 31 March 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and 
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and an associate company 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group and its associate company incorporated 

164(2) of the Act.

are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 

b. The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India 
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

d.  (i)  The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies 
and an associate company, respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and 
an associate company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary 

(ii) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and 

under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies 
and an associate company, respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 

received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and an associate 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or 
any of such subsidiary companies and an associate company shall directly or indirectly, lend 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary 

been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice that has caused 
us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 
11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company is in compliance with 
Section 123 of the Act. The subsidiary companies and an associate company incorporated in India 
have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination, which included test checks, and that performed by the respective 
auditors of the subsidiaries and an associate which are companies incorporated in India, whose 

the Holding Company and its subsidiaries have used accounting softwares for maintaining their 
books of account which have features of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software:

i.  In case of Holding Company, the audit trail (edit log) facility has not been enabled for the 
accounting software used by the Holding Company for maintaining its books of account 
relating to general ledger;

ii.  In case of a Subsidiary Company, as communicated by the auditor of such subsidiary, the 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility of the accounting software used for maintaining 
general ledger was not enabled for the period 1 April 2023 to 10 October 2023;

iii.  In case of an Associate Company, accounting software used by the Associate Company does 
not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

 Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout 
the year for the respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of the 
audit trail feature being tampered with.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of 
the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India which 
were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, and its 
subsidiary companies and an associate company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company, and its 
subsidiary companies and an associate company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Partner
Place: New Delhi  Membership No.: 090075
Date: 27 May 2024  ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYT1356

or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 reports 

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Partner
Place: New Delhi  Membership No.: 090075
Date: 27 May 2024  ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYT1356
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Opinion

subsidiary companies and its associate company, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its associate company, have, in 

essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance 

The respective Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 

statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

Act. 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
of the relevant subsidiary companies and associate company in terms of their reports referred to in the Other 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 

companies and one associate company, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Partner
Place: New Delhi  Membership No.: 090075
Date: 27 May 2024  ICAI UDIN:24090075BKGTYT1356
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Particulars Note As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Rs. lakhs  
ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 61,620.64 
Capital work-in progress 3 220.61 
Right-of-use assets 41 1,313.15 
Intangible assets 4 238.16 
Equity accounted investees 5 1,397.40 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 6 314.50 
  (ii) Loans 7 62.82 

8 699.92 540.64 
Income-tax assets (net) 9 1,655.70 
Other non-current assets 10 5,638.85 

73,002.47 
Current assets
Inventories 11 63,482.91 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 12 2,835.35 
  (ii) Trade receivables 13 24,224.22 
  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 784.24 
  (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 1,728.35 
  (v) Loans 16 19.18 

17 26,829.49 
Other current assets 18 2,166.89 
Asset held for sale 58 33.87 
Total current assets 1,22,104.50 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,95,106.97 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 19 1,739.84 
Other equity 20 69,926.90 

71,666.74 
LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 21 7,331.01 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 41 1,096.68 

22 5,415.70 
Provisions 23 1,003.95 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 39 5,578.14 
Other non-current liabilities 24 58.85 

20,484.33 

Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 25 42,168.98 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 41 436.22 
  (iii) Trade payables 26
       -Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 1,215.71 
       -Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 26,260.72 

27 4,318.60 
Other current liabilities 28 1,549.57 
Provisions 29 27,006.10 
Current tax liabilities (net) - 

1,02,955.90 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,95,106.97 

2A

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Particulars Note For the year ended
 March 31, 2023 

 Rs. lakhs  
Revenue from operations 30 2,35,092.47 
Other income 31 1,750.73 
Total Income 2,36,843.20 
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 32 1,30,589.30 
Purchase of traded goods 33 24,148.52 

34 3,366.21 
and work-in-progress

35 18,637.52 
Finance costs 36 3,354.00 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 3,589.87 
Other expenses 38 44,101.97 
Total expenses 2,27,787.39 

9,055.81 
39.73 

9,095.54 
Tax expense
Current tax 39 2,260.20 
Deferred tax 39 819.33 

3,079.53 
6,016.01 

(365.67)

loss 
127.78 

Share of OCI of equity accounted investees (net of tax ) 2.05 
(235.84)
5,780.17 

50
- Owners of the Company 6,016.01 
- Non-controlling interest - 

50
- Owners of the Company (235.84)
- Non-controlling interest - 

50
- Owners of the Company 5,780.17 
- Non-controlling interest - 

44 6.92 
2A

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Particulars
1,739.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2022 - 

Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 - 

Particulars Reserve and surplus
Amalgama
tion reserve reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
reserve 

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings 

 Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 46,932.96 65,451.61 
- - - - - 6,016.01 6,016.01 

Other comprehensive (expense) for the year net of 
tax

- - - - - (235.84) (235.84)

- - - - - 5,780.17 5,780.17 
- 

- 
Final dividend on equity shares (Rs.0.50 per equity 
share of nominal value of Rs.2 each)

(434.96) (434.96)

Interim dividend on equity shares (Rs.1.00 per equity 
share of nominal value of Rs.2 each)

(869.92) (869.92)

1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 51,408.25 69,926.90 

Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year 
net of tax

- 

- 

Interim dividend on equity shares (Rs. 2 per equity 
share of nominal value of Rs.2 each)

Nature and purpose of reserve

a. Amalgamation reserve

Amalgation reserve has been created on amalgamation of Daurala Organics Limited with the Group.

c. Capital redemption reserve
Created on redemption of preference shares as per requirements of the Companies Act, 1956.

d. Capital reserve
Represents excess of Group’s portion of equity in the subsidiary over its cost of investment.

e. Securities premium
Securities premium has been created on account of the premium received on issue of shares and capital and reorganisation reserve 

f. Retained earnings

2A

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Particulars

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
    9,095.54 

 Adjustments for :   
  Depreciation and amortisation   3,589.87 

  Finance costs   3,354.00 

  Interest income   (107.14)

  Interest income against subvention   (290.81)

  (16.38)

   (39.73)

  Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back   (342.20)

  Bad debts and advances written off   10.10 

   (43.98)

  Net gain on fair value of investments   (66.29)

   15,142.98 
 Changes in assets and liabilities   
  Increase in trade payables   967.38 

   6,529.95 

  Increase in other liabilities & provisions   9,480.06 

  (Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables   1,260.74 

  (Increase) in inventories   (213.31)

   (10,952.51)

  (Increase) in other assets   (3,742.78)

 Cash generated from operations    18,472.51 
 Income tax paid (net)    (1,611.00)

 Net cash from operating activities ( A )    16,861.51 
    
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
   Capital expenditure on acquisition of items of property, plant and equipments 

and intangible assets, including capital work in progress  
 (5,260.38)

  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments   161.99  97.39 

  Investment in mutual fund (net)   (4,403.78)

  Investment in equity shares - non current   (133.92)

  Proceeds from sale of current investments   2,669.48 

  Investment in bank desposit   (4.98)

  Changes in other bank balances   156.89 

  Interest received   91.77 

 Net cash (used in) investing activities ( B )    (6,787.53)
    
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
  Proceeds from long term borrowings   1,046.09 

  Repayment of long term borrowings   (7,532.17)

  Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)   1,126.16 

  Repayment of Lease Liabilities   (449.42)

  Finance costs paid (Net of subvention)   (3,029.46)

  Dividend paid   (1,293.02)

    (10,131.82)
    
 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   (57.84)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   842.08 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    784.24 
    
 Components of cash and cash equivalents   
 Balances with scheduled banks:   
  - Current accounts   767.69 

  - Cash in hand   16.55 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    784.24 
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activities :

Particulars Current Total

Opening balance as at April 1, 2022  20,815.96  33,572.92  1,777.67  56,166.55 
 (7,495.54)  (135.15)  (598.01)  (8,228.70)

Non-cash changes due to:
- Interest expense (net of subvention)  1,653.29  1,261.31  -    2,914.60 
- Finance cost on lease liability  -    -    148.59  148.59 
- Lease liability recognised  -    -    204.65  204.65 

Closing balance as at March 31, 2023  14,973.71  34,699.08  1,532.90  51,205.69 

and interest accrued thereon, refer Note 22 and 27.

# This does not include current maturities of loan term borrowings

Notes
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1. Corporate information 

and its associate are primarily engaged in production and sale of sugar, alcohol, power, chemicals and 

 2.1  Principles of consolidation

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee)

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee, including:

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

• The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the 
holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a 
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group 
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 

Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

:

Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 

on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of the subsidiary are shown separately in the 

Balance Sheet respectively. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not 
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the 
former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss 

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The Group’s interest in equity accounted investees comprise interest in associate.

Investments in associate are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. It is initially 
recognized at cost which includes transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated 

The details of the entities included in the consolidation and the Parent Group’s holding therein is 
as under:

S. 
No.

Nature of 
relation

Country of 
Incorporation

1 Daurala Foods and Beverages Private 
Limited (DFBPL)

Subsidiary 100 100 India

2 DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited 
(DSFCL)

Subsidiary 100 100 India

3 DCM Shriram International Limited 
(DSIL)

Subsidiary 100 100 India

4 DCM Hyundai Limited (DHL) Associate 49.28 49.28 India

parent with that of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are 

statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the 
parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account 
for any related goodwill.

recognized in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’), are 
eliminated in full). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition 

transactions.

equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results 

relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

and its associate have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
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section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as 

These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its associate for the year ended 
March 31, 2024, are approved by the Holding Company’s Audit Committee and by the Board 
of Directors on May 27, 2024.

the Group’s functional currency. All amounts are in Rupees lakhs with two decimal points 
rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise stated. 

historical cost convention, except for the following items:

Items

Investments in Mutual Funds

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date 
under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated, using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or 
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at 
the measurement date.

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Financial reporting results rely on the 
estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely 
develop exactly as forecast and the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results 
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Estimates and 
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of these 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising that are beyond the control of the Group.

 
and (c).

2A(h)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

and lease term- Note 2A(n)

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Group and the normal time between 
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has 

and liabilities as current and non-current.

normal operating cycle,

a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes 
capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its 
purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after 
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the 
item to its working condition for its intended use and, for assets that necessarily take a 
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price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other 
consideration given to acquire the asset. The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset 
if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Capital work-in-progress is stated at 
cost, net of impairment loss, if any. 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition and location 
for their intended use, and the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the items and 
restoring the site on which they are located. Interest cost incurred for constructed assets 
is capitalised up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings 

different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

derecognized. 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on 

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of 
their net book value and net realizable value. Any gains or losses arising on disposal 

Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not necessary to bring the 
item to the location and the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 

the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 

appropriate.

The cost of property, plant and equipment as of April 01, 2016, the Group’s date of 
transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value, recognised as 
per the previous GAAP (deemed cost). 

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the 

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method as per the 
useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold land (being 
in the nature of perpetual lease) and freehold land are not depreciated. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

year, and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. 

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below: 

Type of asset
Leasehold improvements Lease term
Buildings 5-60 years
Plant and equipment 10-40 years
Vehicles 8-10 years

5 years
10 years

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The 
cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price including duties and taxes 
and any costs directly attributable to making the assets ready for their intended use. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic 

The amortisation method and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually 
and adjusted, as necessary.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is ascertained on a 
‘weighted average’ basis. 

Cost includes direct materials, labour, freight inwards, other direct cost, a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, net of refundable duties, 
levies and taxes, wherever applicable.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs, necessary to make the sale.

Assessment of net realisable value is made at each reporting date. When the circumstances 
that previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when 
there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic 
circumstances, the amount so written-down is adjusted in terms of policy as stated above.

Appropriate adjustments are made to the carrying value of damaged, slow moving and 
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obsolete inventories based on management’s current best estimate.

The cost of production (including cost of conversion) of joint products is allocated on such 
joint products, based on a rational and consistent basis, i.e., relative realisable value at the 

By-products are valued at estimated net realizable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

i. Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products 
is transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts and rebates. The Group collects Goods and Services Tax 

to the Group. Hence, these are excluded from the revenue. At contract inception, the 
Group assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and 
identify, as a performance obligation, each promise to transfer to the customer. 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods or services 
are transferred to customers and the Group retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over 
the goods sold. The timing of the transfer of control of products to customers at the time 
of dispatch, during shipment or receipt of goods by the customers which vary based on 
individual terms of the sales agreements.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, 
adjusted for variable consideration such as volume discounts, cash discounts, etc., as 

reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services 
that the entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable 
when the entity’s right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the 
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due. 

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which 
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the 
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services 
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received or due, 
whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group 
performs under the contract. 

ii.  Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services are recognised over a period of time as and 
when underline services are performed as the customer simultaneously receives and 

rendered is received as per the credit terms in the agreements with the customers. 

is recognized upon full completion of the job work.

realisa
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

- Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The 

consideration with elements such as volume discounts, price concessions and 
incentives. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction 
price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The 
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only 

cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each 
reporting period. The Group allocates the elements of variable considerations to 
all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence 
that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

in time and judgement is exercised in determining the same.

Interest income are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method, when 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding. Dividends income from investments is recognised 
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established. 

and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised 
directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

• Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income 
or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of 
the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to 
income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date.

 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the 
liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate.

• Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 

for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that effects neither accounting 

- temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiary, to the 
extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the 

set off against future income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 

against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or 

consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting 
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised 
simultaneously.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset 
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income 
tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the 
normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

legal and constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to 

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Gratuity

eligible employees. In accordance with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity plan 
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapacitation 
or termination of employment. These are funded by the Group and are managed by Life 
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

for each plan using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service 

on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity 
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 

the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI 

subsequent periods.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is 

from the plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan. To calculate the present 

requirements.

occurs.

Government)

of the Government which are made to the Trusts administered by the Group are accounted 
for on the basis of actuarial valuation. The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust 
is not considered to be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central 
Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
and, shortfall, if any, based on actuarial estimate by an approved actuary, is made good by 
the 
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measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 

arise.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. 

and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to 
compensate, and presented within other income (operating or non-operating, as appropriate) 

and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same. 

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses 

receivable.

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in 

statements are presented in INR which is Group’s functional and presentational currency. 

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the 
functional currency of the Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or at 
an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are 
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/ losses arising on 
account of realisation/ settlement of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of 

Loss.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is greater of its value in use and 
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of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the 

used.

asset, recoverable amount is determined in relation to the CGUs to which a corporate asset 
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its 

and Loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying 
amounts of the assets of the CGU.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting periods. If the effect of the time value 

the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost 
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before 
a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on assets associated.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 

statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain 

the period in which the change occurs. 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of 
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets 
are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
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the borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When Group borrows funds generally and uses 
them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs 
is computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding 
during the period and used for the acquisition of the qualifying asset. 

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to 
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

The Group recognizes a Right of Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, 
except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets 
in accordance with Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’. The Group assesses whether a contract contains 
a lease, at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 

for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

the period of the lease and the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs, etc. Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less 
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use 
asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets unless the lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-

of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and 
equipment. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 

the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Group measures the lease 
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily 
determined. If that rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using 
the incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an 
option to purchase the underlying asset. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, 
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is 
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zero. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before 
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is 
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The Group uses a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

on their nature.

attributable to the shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus / rights issue, if any, that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources. 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. 

The Executive Committee, primarily comprising Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time 

Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. Refer Note 
40 for segment information.

Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates the resources 
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment 

Unallocable items include general corporate income and expense items which are not 
allocated to any business segment.

Segment policies:

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies 

a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.
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Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing 

Initial recognition and measurement

Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2A (e) Revenue recognition. 

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised 
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

three categories:

a) At amortised cost

c) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as 

otherwise arise.

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 

For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present 
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Group makes such 

and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income. This 

instruments.

Investments representing equity interest in associate are carried at cost less any provision 
for impairment.

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI – debt instruments.

Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all 

risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount 
of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 

since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes 
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical 
experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information. 

the following observable data:

• a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;

recognition of expected lifetime losses.
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it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured 
at fair value and net gains and losses, including gany interest expense, are recognized in 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange 

Offsetting

Balance Sheet when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Derecognition

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its 
Balance Sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

and Loss.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 

and bank overdrafts. 

and Loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset 
only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. 
As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the 
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Goods and services tax input credit is recognised in the books of account in the period in 
which the supply of goods or service received is recognised and when there is no uncertainty 
in availing/utilising the credits.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes 
paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from 
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, the net 
amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part 
of receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.

is intended to be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. The 

group is available for immediate sale and the same is highly probable of being completed 

groups held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less cost 
to sell.

A gain or loss of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-recognition. Once 

depreciated.

 2B. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as issued from time to time. 

the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Rs. lakhs)

Total

year 

Projects in progress - 

Total - - - 

Projects in progress 220.61 - - - 220.61 

Total

Notes: 

1)  For contractual commitments with respect to capital work-in-progress, refer note 42(B). 

2)  For details on property, plant & equipment & capital work-in-progress mortgaged/charged against borrowings, refer 
note 56. 

3)  Borrowing cost capitalised during the year Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023- Rs Nil) with a capitalisation rate of Nil (March 31, 
2023-Nil) 

4)  Leasehold lands are in the nature of  perpetual lease. 

(Rs. lakhs) 

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2022 546.83 

Add: Additions during the year  2.12 

Less: Disposals / adjustments/ capitalized during the year  2.39 

Add: Additions during the year 

Less: Disposals / adjustments/ capitalized during the year  

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 222.94 

Amortisation expense during the year  87.83 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year 2.37 

Add: Amortisation expense for the year  

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  

Net carrying value 

As at March 31, 2023 238.16 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.
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5.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

DCM Hyundai Limited

19,72,000 (March 31, 2023 - 19,72,000)

equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 166.00 

1,231.40 

1,397.40 

6.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Daurala Co-operative Development Union Limited

2 (March 31, 2023 - 2) equity shares of face

0.00 

Zyrone Dynamics Havacilik Danismanlik ve Ar-Ge Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.

9,797 (March 31, 2023 - 9,797) equity shares of Face value of 1 Turkish 
Lira each, fully paid up

314.50 

Total 314.50 

314.50 

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Loans to employees 62.82 

Total 62.82 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 30.98 

Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 488.74 

Bank deposits

- with more than 12 months maturity 191.92 20.10 

- held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and   
  other commitments

- 

Interest accured on term deposits 0.82 

Total 699.92 540.64 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

9.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Advance income tax (net of provision) 1,655.70 

Total 1,655.70 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

 Capital advances 24.00 

 Capital advances 6.17 

Advance other than capital advances

 Deferred rent 2.96 3.33 

 Government dues paid and recoverable (refer note 55) 5,309.18 

 Balance with government authorities 237.29 

 Advances to employees 40.06 

 Prepaid expenses 18.82 

Total 5,638.85 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.
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11. Inventories

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

12,639.17 

Work in progress 1,927.85 

42,019.79 

Stores and spares 6,896.10 

Total 63,482.91 

# The write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 786.21 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 445.46 lakhs)

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

12.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

and loss 

1,326.72  (March 31, 2023: 23,916.09) HDFC Liquid Fund – Growth 1,057.86 

Direct Plan Units of Rs. 1000 each

5,71,951.25 (March 31, 2023: 2,30,362.72) ICICI Prudential Liquid 767.53 

Fund – Growth Direct Plan Units of Rs. 100 each

33,122.67 (March 31, 2023: 28,665.21) SBI Liquid Fund – Growth 1,009.96 

Direct Plan Units of Rs. 1000 each

2,835.35 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,835.35 

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Unsecured, considered good 24,224.22 

Unsecured, credit impaired 34.97 

24,259.19 

Less : Loss allowance for trade receivables 34.97 

Total 24,224.22 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Particulars Not due

Less 6 
years years

Total

- Undisputed Trade Receivables-  
  considered good

24,268.20 3,219.58 9.62 6.54 3.52 4.75 27,512.21 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- which  
  

- - - - - - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit  
  impaired

- - - - - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables- considered  
  good

- - - - 75.03 - 75.03 

- Disputed Trade Receivables- which have  
  

- - - - - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables- credit  
  impaired

- - - - 10.10 - 10.10 

Total 9.62 

Particulars Not due

Less 6 
years years

Total

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered  
  good

23,139.08 988.30 4.82 8.67 7.62 0.70 24,149.19 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have  
  

- - - - - - - 

- Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit  
  impaired

- - - - - - -

- Disputed Trade Receivables- considered  
  good

- - - 75.03 - - 75.03 

- Disputed Trade Receivables- which have  - - - - - - - 

- Disputed Trade Receivables- credit  
  impaired

- - - 10.10 - 24.87 34.97 

Total

The Group exposure to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 47.

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balances with banks

- On current accounts 767.69 

Cash on hand 16.55 

Total 784.24 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.
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15.
As at  

 
As at  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months
but upto twelve months
- in deposit accounts 979.34 
- earmarked deposits held as margin money or security against 538.12 
  borrowings, guarantees and other commitments
Earmarked balances with banks – unclaimed  dividend accounts 210.89 
Total 1,728.35 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

16.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Loans to employees (including accrued interest) 18.56 
Others 0.62 
Total 19.18 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Security deposits - 
Interest accrued on term deposits 81.47 
Government grant receivable 151.62 
Reimbursement assets (Refer note 55) 26,312.70 
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months
- held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and   
  other commitments

- 

Other receivables 299.95 283.70 
Total 26,829.49 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

 Advances to contractors 272.51 
 Other advances
 Advance to employees 22.76 
 Balance with government authorities 1,053.16 
 Duty drawback and other incentive receivables 76.07 
 Prepaid expenses 322.36 

308.76 
 Other receivables 111.27 

Total 2,166.89 

Refer note 56 for information on assets charged as security by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

32,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each (March 31, 2023: 32,50,00,000 of 
Rs. 2 each)

6,500.00 

8,69,92,185 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up (March 31, 2023: 
8,69,92,185 of Rs.2 each) 

1,739.84 

Particulars As at  March 31, 2023 
Number of shares Amount Rs. lakhs 

At the commencement of the year 8,69,92,185 1,739.84 
Add: Shares issued - - 

8,69,92,185 1,739.84 

The Holding Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 
to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be 
in proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

Particulars As at  March 31, 2023 
Number of 

shares @ Rs. 2 
each 

% of holding  

1,63,21,115 18,76 
1,33,03,540 15.30 

HB Portfolio Limited 60,21,756 6.92 
67,84,840 7.80 

S. 
No.

Promoter Name As at March 31, 2023 

year 

Number of 
shares @ Rs 2 

each 

% of total shares % Change during 
the year 

1 Lily Commercial Private 1,63,21,115 18.76 3.61%

2 Versa Trading Private 1,33,03,540 15.30 3.22%

Bantam Enterprises Private 67,84,840 7.80 - 

Hi-Vac Wares Private 39,66,285 4.56 - 

5 H. R. Travels Private 32,12,900 3.69 - 

6 Aditi Dhar                                                  500 0.00 - 
Akshay Dhar                                                 500 0.00 - 
Divya Shriram                                               435 0.00 - 
Total 
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Limited, Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited and HR Travels Private Limited into and with the Lily Commercial Private Limited 
with effect from April 01, 2023 (which is the appointed date under the scheme) has been approved by the NCLT. 

There were no buy back of shares, issue of shares by way of bonus shares or issue of shares pursuant to contract without 
payment being received in cash during the previous 5 years.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

a. Amalgamation reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,411.38 

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 13,465.60 

c. Capital redemption reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 0.10 

d. Capital reserve

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 234.89 

e. Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,406.68 

f. Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 46,932.96 

6,016.01 

Items of other comprehensive income/ (expense) recognised directly in 
retained earnings

(237.89)

Share of equity accounted investees 2.05 

Less: Appropriations

Final dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs. Nil per share of 
nominal value of Rs. 2/- each (March 31, 2023: Rs.  0.5/- per share of 
nominal value of Rs. 2/- each)]

(434.96)

Interim dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs. 2/- per share 
of nominal value of Rs. 2/- each (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1/- per share of 
nominal value of Rs. 2/- each)]

(869.92)

51,408.25 

Total 69,926.90 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

21.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Unsecured loans
Public deposits 437.04 

Secured loans
Term loans from banks 13,109.57 
Term loans from others 469.71 
Deferred payment liability 305.07 
Unsecured loans
Public deposits 479.52 

14,800.91 
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings 7,469.90 

Total 7,331.01 

Secured loans
Term loans from banks 6,793.10 
Term loans from others 115.07 
Deferred payment liability 305.07 
Unsecured loans
Public deposits 256.66 

7,469.90 

A. SECURED 

a) Rs.271.21 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.1,356.04 lakhs) carrying interest of 5% p.a., repayable in 3 monthly 

Company excluding assets on exclusive charges.

b) Nil (March 31,2023: Rs.267.19 lakhs), Nil lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.180.18 lakhs) and Rs.1,039.98 lakhs 
(March 31,2023: Rs.2,076.41 lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR, repayable in 4 quarterly 

Company excluding assets on exclusive charges. 

c) Rs.2,916.89 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.4,338.97 Lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR 

immovable and movable properties of the Company excluding assets on exclusive charges. 

d) Rs.1,736.47 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.2,941.50 lakhs) carrying interest of 8% p.a., repayable in 18 monthly 

of the Company, excluding assets on exclusive charges.

e) Nil (March 31,2023: Rs.333.26 lakhs) and Rs.156.25 (March 31,2023: Rs.781.25 lakhs) carrying interest 
rate of 8.95% p.a., repayable in 1 quarterly instalment, was/is secured by residual pari-passu charge on 

f) Rs.145.12 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.762.90 lakhs) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR and 
spread thereon with 50% interest subvention on part of the loan, repayable in 1 quarterly instalment, is 

of the Company. 
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22.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 28.28 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.08 
Deposits from contractors and others 10.29 
Due to customer (refer note 55) 5,331.53 

Other payables 44.52 
Total 5,415.70 

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

- Compensated absences 903.95 
100.00 

Total 1,003.95 

relating to reorganisation arrangement of the Holding Company. There is no movement in the provision during 
the year.

g) Rs.900.00 lakhs (March 31,2023: Nil) carrying interest linked to lender’s 1 year MCLR and spread thereon, 

Works - Sugar & Alcohol division, a unit of the Company. 

h) 
interest of 8.50%, repayable in 45 monthly instalments.  

i) Rs.346.15 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.445.05 lakhs) carrying interest linked to RBI’s Bank rate minus 2%., 

properties of sugar factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company. 

ii) 
interest of 6.63%, repayable in 6 monthly instalments.

immoveable property of a wholly owned subsidiary, DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Limited, of the Company.

B. Unsecured 

Rs.902.86 lakhs (March 31,2023: Rs.916.56 lakhs), deposits from public, carries interest between 9% p.a to 10% p.a., 
are currently repayable after 3 years from the date of acceptance of deposits.

C. 
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

   

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Other payables 58.85 
Total 58.85 

25.

As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Secured loans
34,699.08 

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21) 7,469.90 
Total 42,168.98 

division's property, plant and equipments), both present and future. Some of these are further secured by way of second pari-passu 
charge on the division's property, plant and equipment. These carry interest rates ranging from 5.00% to 9.50% p.a. (March 31, 
2023: 1.25% to 9.50% p.a.). Also refer note 56.

26.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
1,215.71 

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises# 26,260.72 
Total 27,476.43 

Particulars Not due^

year years
Total

MESE 908.05 401.63 - - - 1,309.68 
Others 4,692.89 25,631.47 10.53 36.27 2.28 30,373.44 
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 
Total

Particulars Not due^

year years
Total

MESE 24.82 1,190.89 - - - 1,215.71 
Others 1,817.46 23,762.40 676.92 3.94 - 26,260.72 
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 
Total

# Includes payable to related parties Rs. 208.52 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 113.36 lakhs), refer note 46.

^ Includes unbilled dues.

Notes:
a)  Includes acceptances Rs. 6,816.34 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 4,907.96 lakhs).

b)  The Group exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 47.
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As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 32.77 

Employee related payable 481.67 

Dividend payable - 

Dividend payable - 

Creditors for capital purchases 387.84 

Security deposits 476.42 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 110.67 

210.89 

- Deposits from contractors and others 600.38 

- Employee related payable 1,954.71 

- Others 63.25 

Total 4,318.60 

Companies Act, 2013 as at the year end.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Advances from customers 487.23 

Statutory dues payable 907.36 

Other payables 154.98 

Total 1,549.57 

29.

As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

- Compensated absences 604.37 

- Provident fund trust 89.04 

26,312.70 

Total 27,006.10 

(FY 2022-23: Rs. 10,579.45 lakhs). Consequently, the provision for contingencies of Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs as 
at March 31, 2023 (Rs. 15,733.25 lakhs as at March 31, 2022) has increased to Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as on 
March 31, 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Revenue from operations

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Sale of products@

Export 48,434.05 

Domestic 1,78,524.11 

2,26,958.16 

Sale of services@

Processing charges 5,733.65 

2,32,691.81 

Sale of scrap 971.94 

1,057.57 

62.21 197.27 

Other operating income 173.88 

Total 2,35,092.47 

@ Refer note 40 for disaggregation of revenue

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

24,224.22 

Advances from customers (Refer note 28) 487.23 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

Contracted price  2,33,126.53 

Less: Discounts 434.72 

2,32,691.81 

The amount of Rs. 329.02 lakhs included in contract liabilities at March 31, 2023 has been recognised as revenue 
during the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 488.75 lakhs)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products is transferred to the 
customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates.

Invoices are generated at that point in time. Invoices are usually payable within 180 days.
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 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

- From deposits with banks 106.78 
- Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.36 

290.81 

   Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back 342.20 
   Rental income 101.29 

16.38 
43.98 
66.29 

676.56 
   Miscellaneous income 106.08 
Total 1,750.73 

Cost of materials consumed

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 9,494.16 
Add: Purchases 1,33,734.87 

1,43,229.03 
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year 12,639.73 
Total 1,30,589.30 
Particulars of materials consumed are as under:
Sugarcane 82,556.37 
Wood pulp 11,145.76 
Others 36,887.17 
Total 1,30,589.30 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Grain spirits 24,148.52 
Total 24,148.52 

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Opening stock
Finished goods 44,745.27 
Work-in-progress 2,568.58 
Total 47,313.85 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Closing stock
Finished goods 42,019.79 
Work-in-progress 1,927.85 
Total 43,947.64 

3,366.21 

Finished goods 2,725.48 
Work-in-progress 640.73 
Total 3,366.21 

 

Sugar 33,913.56 
Alcohol 827.24 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 441.20 

6,837.79 
Total 42,019.79 

Sugar 640.74 
Alcohol 194.49 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 518.49 

574.13 
Total 1,927.85 

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs
16,274.10 

Contribution to provident and other funds 1,882.42 
Staff welfare expenses 481.00 
Total 18,637.52 

# Includes payment to contractual labour

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

3,283.07 
Other borrowing costs 70.93 
Total 3,354.00 

# includes Rs.143.62 lakhs interest on lease liabilities (March 31, 2023: Rs.148.59 lakhs)
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Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 3,062.83 
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 4) 87.83 
Amortisation on right-of-use assets (refer note 41) 439.21 
Total 3,589.87 

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Consumption of stores and spares 11,738.42 
Power and fuel 11,818.00 
Commission to selling agents 2,655.10 
Freight and transport 2,221.81 
Insurance 314.88 
Rates and taxes 395.18 
Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings 826.74 
- Plant and machinery 5,838.13 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note below) 180.11 
Rent (refer note 41) 64.68 
Payments to auditors
- As auditors 60.71 

37.50 
4.07 

- Out-of-pocket expenses 6.99 
Provision for doubtful debts 10.10 

2,012.56 
Professional expenses 1,228.11 
Miscellaneous expenses 4,688.88 
Total 44,101.97 

a) Amount approved by Board of Directors required to be spent by the  
    Group during the year

 187.22 

b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 175.13 

12.09 

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

(i) Promoting health care including preventive health and sanitation 22.93 
(ii) Promoting education, including special education and employment 52.62 
(iii) Empowering women and support to senior citizen 3.08 
(iv) Environmental sustainability and conservation of natural resources 
and maintaining quality of soil, air and water

21.40 

(v) Promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts 21.94 
10.00 

(vii) Training to promote rural sports 5.90 
(viii)  Contribution to Prime Minister's National Relief Fund and PM CARES 18.75 
(ix) Rural development project 13.01 
(x) Amount spent in administrative overhead 6.25 5.50 

175.13 
e) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure (refer note 46)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Income tax expense

 A. 
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Current tax expense  2,260.20 
Tax relating to earlier years  -   
Total tax expense  2,260.20 
Deferred tax charge  819.33 

 3,079.53 

 B. 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Income tax
 127.78 

 127.78 

 C. 

2024 and March 31, 2023:

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

 Rate  Amount  Rate  Amount 

34.94%  8,664.70 
26.00%  25.44 

Tax based on Group’s domestic tax rate 34.92%  3,034.41 
Tax effect of:

Tax relating to earlier years  -    -   
Non-deductible expenses 0.72%  62.94 
Impact on Deferred Tax due to change in tax rate for future years  (3.09)%  (268.86)
Others# 1.42%  123.26 

Effective tax rate 33.97%  2,951.75 

# The Holding Company continues to pay income tax under the old tax regime and has not opted for lower tax rate 
pursuant to Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (Section 115 BAA of The Income Tax Act, 1961) considering 

 
March 31, 2025 have been re-measured considering the revised rate. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Particulars  Opening  Recognised 
in statement of 

income 

 Closing 

Deferred tax assets

Accrued expenses deductible on payment  307.15  (45.20)  -    261.95 

Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences and  311.42  (20.03)  127.78  419.17 

Loss allowance for trade receivables  8.69  3.53  -    12.22 

Loss allowance for other assets  8.38  (0.90)  -    7.48 

Others  150.35  (5.86)  -    144.49 

 785.99  (68.46)  127.78  845.31 

Difference in written down values as per books and 
as per tax laws of property, plant and equipment/ 
intangible assets

(7,360.11)  (674.00)  -    (8,034.11)

Others  (223.79)  (76.89)  -    (300.68)

(7,583.90)  (750.89)  -    (8,334.79)

Total (6,797.91)  (819.35)  127.78  (7,489.48)

 As at    As at   
March 31, 2023 

Amount Amount

2029-30  9.15  18.00 

2030-31  273.41 

2032-33  996.93 

2033-34  623.00 

 9.15  1,911.34 
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Operating segments

A. Basis for segmentation

Decision Maker (CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The CODM 
monitors the operating results separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and 
performance measurement (Refer Note 2A (p)).

segments. Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided to the 

In addition to the material accounting policies applicable to the business segments as set out in note 2A(p) 
above, the accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

Segment revenue and expenses are, generally, directly attributable to the segments. Joint revenue and 
expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating, trade 
receivables, inventories and property plant and equipment and intangible assets, net of allowances and 
provisions, which are reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating 
liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities and do not include deferred income taxes 
and borrowings. While most of the assets / liabilities can be directly attributed to individual segments, the 
carrying amount of certain assets / liabilities pertaining to two or more segments are allocated to the segments 
on a reasonable basis.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Sugar Comprising sugar, power and alcohol
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

i. Total income
  For the year ended  

March 31, 2023 
Rs. lakhs 

Total revenue for reportable segments  2,36,318.26 
 Unallocated amounts: 
 Unallocable income  524.94 
 Inter-segment elimination  -   
 Total income  2,36,843.20 

ii.   For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
 16,022.83 

 Unallocated cost: 
 Finance costs  (3,354.00)
 Other unallocated amounts  (3,613.02)

 9,055.81 

iii. Assets
As at As at 

 March 31, 2023 
Rs. lakhs 

Total assets for reportable segments  1,81,244.99 
 Unallocated amounts: 
 Investments  4,547.25 
 Corporate assets  9,314.73 

 1,95,106.97 

iv. (Rs.Lakhs)
As at As at 

 March 31, 2023 
Rs. lakhs 

Total liabilities for reportable segments  65,283.55 
 Unallocated amounts: 
 Share capital  1,739.84 
 Reserves and Surplus  69,926.90 
 Unallocated corporate liabilities   58,156.68 

 1,95,106.97 

D.
The geographical information analyses the Group’s revenues and assets by the country of domicile (i.e. India) and 
other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic 
location of customers and segment assets.

i. Revenue from operations   For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 
 1,86,658.42 

     Europe  17,784.26 
     China  17,841.97 
     Rest of the World  12,807.82 

 48,434.05 
(c) Inter-segment elimination  -   

 2,35,092.47 
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  For the year ended  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. lakhs 

ii. Assets

(a) India  71,038.01 

(b) Outside India  -   

 71,038.01 

Non-current segment assets include property, plant and equipments, right-of-use assets, capital work in progress, 
intangible assets and other non current assets.

E.

Revenue from one customer of the Group's Sugar segment represented approximately Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: 
Rs.37,380.49 lakhs) of the Group's total revenues. 

Leases

The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Holding Company are as follows:

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Opening as on Additions Deletions 

year

Depreciation 

year

Net carrying 
amount as at  

Building  1,313.15  644.46  -    472.08  1,485.53 

 1,313.15  644.46  -    472.08  1,485.53 

Particulars Opening as on Additions Deletions 

year

Depreciation 

year

Net carrying 
amount as at  

Building  1,549.85  348.71  146.20  439.21  1,313.15 

 1,549.85  348.71  146.20  439.21  1,313.15 

The Group incurred Rs. 33.12 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.64.68 lakhs) towards expenses relating to leases of low-
value assets. 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the 
balance sheet at the date of initial application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Opening balance  1,777.66 
Additions  350.87 
Deletions  (146.20)

 148.59 
Payment of lease liability  (598.01)

 1,532.90 

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Within one year  436.22 

 900.56 
 196.12 

 1,532.90 

A.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Income tax matters  4,797.75 
Excise and Service tax matters  28.52 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (excluding claims 
by employees, where amounts are not ascertainable)

 968.08 

Sales tax matters  15.46 
Sugarcane related matters  4,545.26 
Share in contingent liabilities of associate company  182.21 
Total  10,537.29 

concluded, are not likely to, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the results of the operations or 

B. Commitments

a.  Capital commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances) aggregating to Rs. 250.92 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 99.42 lakhs) relating to 
Property, plant and equipment.

The Group has other commitments, for purchase / sales orders which are issued after 

including union agreement in the normal course of business. The Group does not have any long term 
commitments / contracts including, derivative contracts, with any material foreseeable losses.

before the Hon’ble Company Law Board (now National Company Law Tribunal), pending since November 2007, had 
been dismissed as withdrawn in the hearing held on March 07, 2023.
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shareholders of the Group, by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars Unit   For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs  6,016.01 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year

Numbers  8,69,92,185 

Nominal value per share Rs.  2  2 
Basic and diluted earnings per share Rs.  6.92 

Rs. 201.03 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 180.88  lakhs) for provident fund contributions and Rs. 254.02 lakhs (March 
31, 2023: Rs. 247.35 lakhs) for superannuation and national pension scheme fund contributions have been charged 

of the schemes.

a)  Liabilities for gratuity, privilege leaves and medical leaves are determined on actuarial basis. Gratuity liability is 
provided to the extent not covered by the funds available in the gratuity fund.

Gratuity scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, while in employment, 

employment.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Non current  -   
Current  (308.76)

 (308.76)

The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of gratuity liability and its 
components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,114.35 
Current service cost  275.83 
Interest cost  297.05 

assumptions
 (44.85)

Actuarial loss arising from changes in experience adjustments  195.89 
 (377.79)
 4,460.48 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of plan assets and its components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of the year  4,617.53 

Expected return on plan assets  333.38 

Contribution by the Holding Company  15.34 

 (25.49)

Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income  (171.52)

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Current service cost  275.83 

Interest cost  297.05 

Expected return on plan assets  (333.38)

Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income  322.56 

 562.06 

iv) Constitution of plan assets

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

 4,769.24 

maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not made available and have, therefore, not been disclosed.

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets  (171.52)

assumptions
 44.85 

Actuarial (loss) arising from changes in experience adjustments  (195.89)

 (322.56)
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vi)  Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Discount rate 7.38%

Future salary growth 5.00%

Rate of return on plan assets 7.22%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)  17.33 

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14)

Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2%

Above 44 years- 1%

Retirement age 58 years and 60 years

2023: 13.76 years)

24: Rs. 221.81 lakhs).

valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to the complexities involved, 
the valuation is highly sensitive to the changes in the assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 

cost were measured using the projected unit cost method.

The Company has established an income tax approved irrevocable trust fund to which it regularly contributes to 

per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation is within the permissible limits prescribed 
in the insurance regulations.

expected salary increase.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2023

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate with variation of 0.50%  169.62  (141.56)  151.47 

Future salary growth with variation of 0.50%  153.40  (144.57)

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
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based on past service as at the valuation date:

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Within 1 year  916.51 

1 year to 5 years  1,466.82 

More than 5 years  2,077.15 

C.

The obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Holding Company as at March 31, 2024 
works out to Rs. 1,447.55 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1,269.86 lakhs)

D. Provident fund:

obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust’s investments over the administered interest rates on an 
annual basis. For other employees contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioners. The 
Government mandates the annual yield to be provided to the employees on their corpus. This plan is considered 

has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the yield on the investments of the trust and the yield 

basis of an actuarial valuation.

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Net Provident Fund liability  89.04 

The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of provident fund liability and its 
components:

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of the year  14,263.70 

Current service cost  506.76 

Contribution by plan participants / employees  1,119.47 

Interest cost  1,154.85 

 (0.99)

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in experience adjustments  (7.97)

 (1,195.96)

 15,839.86 
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The following table shows a reconciliation between opening and closing balances of plan assets and its components:
Particulars

 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Rs. Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of the year  14,178.20 
Expected return on plan assets  1,154.85 
Contribution by the Holding company  506.76 
Contribution by plan participants / employees  1,119.47 

 (1,195.96)
Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income  (52.07)
Shortfall funded by the Holding company  39.57 

 15,750.81 

The plan assets constitute investments in Central / State Government Securities, Corporate / PSU / Bank Bonds, 
Mutual Funds and Special Deposit Schemes.

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Current service cost  506.76 
Net cost  506.76 

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income  (43.11)

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars As at  
 

As at  
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

Discount rate 7.38%
Expected statutory interest rate 8.15%

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2%
Above 44 years- 1%

Retirement age 58 years and 60 years

valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to the complexities 
involved, the valuation is highly sensitive to the changes in the assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 

service cost were measured using the projected unit cost method.
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as under:

Particulars   

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.50%)  (3.64)  3.81 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

disclosed.

E. Risk exposure

reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this shall be partially off-set by increase in 
return as per debt investments.

participants. An increase in the life expectancy will increase the plan’s liability.

Related party disclosures:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where 

Mr. S. B. Mathur, Chairman

Mr. Alok B. Shriram, Senior Managing Director

Mr. Madhav B. Shriram, Managing Director

Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar, Director

Mr. Vineet Manaktala, Director & CFO 

Mr. P. R. Khanna, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024) 

Mr. Ravinder Narain, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)

Mr. S. C. Kumar, Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)

Smt. V. Kavitha Dutt, Independent Director
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Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Independent Director 

Mr. Y. D. Gupta, Vice President  & Company Secretary

Ms. Mini Ipe , LIC Nominee Director (w.e.f. January 03, 2024)

Mr. Manoj Kumar, Non-executive Director

Mr. Kamal Kumar, LIC Nominee Director (w.e.f. March 15, 2024)

Mr. Akshay Dhar

Ms. Kanika Shriram

Mr. Rudra Shriram

Mr. Rohan Shriram

Mr. Uday Shriram

Ms. Umika Shriram

Ms. Kislaya Rakesh

Ms. Anita Gupta

Ms. Kiran Khanna

Mr. P. R. Khanna (HUF)

M/s. Lala Bansi Dhar & Sons- HUF

Ms. Suman Bansi Dhar

Ms. Divya Shriram

Ms. Karuna Shriram

Ms. Aditi Dhar

Ms. Amita Manaktala

Ms. Astha Manaktala

Mr. Mohit Manaktala

Ms. Ruby Arora

 Trusts

Employees’ Provident Fund Trust, DCM Shriram Industries Limited

Daurala Organics Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust 

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust

Bantam Enterprises Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)

H.R. Travels Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)

DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited (Formerly Hindustan Vaccum Glass Private Limited)

Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited
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Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited (upto March 07, 2024)

Lily Commercial Private Limited

Fives Cail – KCP Limited

Versa Trading Limited

Absolut Info Systems Private Limited

Brienworks Services Private Limited

Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Rent expenses
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  195.97 
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  22.94 
H.R. Travels Private Limited  6.89 
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  0.90 
Total  226.70 

Interest expense
Key management personnel  13.59 
Relatives of Key management personnel  32.16 
Independent Directors and their relatives/HUF  3.67 
Total  49.42 

DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  5.46 
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited  8.68 
Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.30 
Total  14.44 

Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.25 
Absolut Info Systems Pvt Ltd  0.25 
Total  0.50 

Fives Cail – KCP Limited  0.77 
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited  4.53 
Total  5.30 

Capital Advances 
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  24.00 

Key management personnel  4.96 
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  9.53 
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  101.77 
Lily Commercial Private Limited  236.28 
H.R. Travels Private Limited  48.20 
Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited  59.49 
Versa Trading Limited  193.53 

 653.76 
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Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs
Security deposits paid
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  5.31 

Bantam Enterprises Private Limited  5.31 

fund

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  289.86 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  289.86 
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar  289.86 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  73.14 
Mr. Y. D. Gupta  48.96 
Relatives of key management personnel  197.48 
Total            A  1,189.16 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  3.86 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  1.74 
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar  3.20 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  7.37 
Mr. Y.D. Gupta  6.34 
Relatives of key management personnel  5.57 
Total            B  28.08 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  5.66 
Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  6.02 
Ms. Urvashi Tilakdhar  6.05 
Mr. Vineet Manaktala  2.62 
Mr. Y.D. Gupta  1.67 
Relatives of key management personnel  0.05 
Total            C  22.07 

Commission to Independent Directors
Mr. P. R. Khanna  13.41 
Mr. S. B. Mathur  14.24 
Mr. Ravinder Narain  11.77 
Mr. S. C. Kumar  13.41 
Ms. Kavitha Dutt Chitturi  12.59 
Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar  10.95 
Ms. Mini Ipe  9.30 
Mr. Manoj Kumar  10.95 
Total            D  96.62 
Total compensation paid to key management personnel  1,335.93 

 1,626.23 
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Particulars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Rs. Lakhs

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund Trust  15.34 

DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust  173.93 

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel 30.98 

Capital advances
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  24.00 

Capital creditors
DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  2.28 

DCM Containers & Engineering Private Limited  -   

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  -   
Lily Commercial Private Limited  -   

Key management personnel  118.70 
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  341.89 
Independent Directors & their relatives  37.50 
Total    498.09 

Provisions
Daurala Organics Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust  89.04 

Remuneration to key management personnel  9.72 
Commission to Independent Directors  96.62 
Commission to key management personnel  481.67 
Sitting fees to Indepdendent Directors  7.02 

Note:

Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, to 
be settled in cash.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value

Amortised 
cost

Total Level 1 Level 2

  (i) Investments  -    1,711.90  1,711.90  1,711.90 

 -    62.82  62.82  -    -    -   

 -    540.64  540.64  -    -    -   

Current

Debt instruments 
(Mutual funds)

 2,835.35  -    2,835.35  2,835.35  -    -   

 -    24,224.22  24,224.22  -    -    -   

  (iii)  Cash and cash  -    784.24  784.24  -    -    -   

  (iv)  Other bank  -    1,728.35  1,728.35  -    -    -   

 -    19.18  19.18  -    -    -   

 16.84  26,812.65  26,829.49  16.84  -    -   

Total  2,852.19  54,172.10  57,024.29 

  (i)  Borrowings 
(including current 
maturities)#

 -    14,800.91  14,800.91  -    -    14,800.91 

 -    1,096.68  1,096.68  -    -    -   

 -    5,415.70  5,415.70  -    -    -   

Current 

  (i) Borrowings#  -    34,699.08  34,699.08  -    -    -   

 -    436.22  436.22  -    -    -   

 -    27,476.43  27,476.43  -    -    -   

 -    4,318.60  4,318.60  -    -    -   

Total
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(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value
Amortised 

cost
Total Level 1 Level 2

  (i) Investments

 699.92  699.92 

Current

Debt instruments 
(Mutual funds)

  (iii)  Cash and cash 

  (iv)  Other bank 

Total

  (i)  Borrowings (including 
current maturities)#

Current 
  (i) Borrowings#

Total

and remaining maturities to discount the future payout).

various parties, loans and advances to employees and bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the 

the fair values as on the reporting date.
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There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 
31, 2023.

 

(a)  The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the 
issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the 
price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund, and the price at which issuers will redeem such 
units.

(b) The fair value of all derivative contracts is determined using forward exchange rate at the balance sheet.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at  

Investments  4,547.25 

Trade receivables  24,224.22 

Cash and cash equivalents  784.24 

Other bank balances  1,728.35 

Loans  55.55  82.00 

 27,370.13 

from credit exposure to customers relating to receivables. The Group continuously reviews the credit to be given 
and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade receivables are from parties with whom the Group has 
long standing satisfactory dealings.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars

As at  As at  

 932.73 

91 to 180 days past due  61.53 

More than 180 days past due #  125.85 

Not due  23,139.08 

 24,259.19 
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 # The Group continuously reviews the credit to be given and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade  
 receivables, both domestic and overseas, are from parties with whom the Group has long standing satisfactory  
 dealings. The Group also make provision for lifetime expected credit loss, based on its previous experience of  
 provisions/write offs in previous years.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars    

Balance at the beginning of the year  24.87 

Impairment loss (reversed) / recognised  10.10 

Balance at the end of the year  34.97 

Note

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally transacts with the banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by domestic and international credit rating agencies.

due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Group’s reputation.

The Group believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other 
than cash and cash equivalent, of Rs.3,068.95 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 2,512.59 
lakhs), anticipated future considering internally generated funds from operations fully available and revolving 
undrawn credit facility will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business. 

should enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating and other liquidity requirements. The Group will continue 
to consider various borrowing or leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements, as 
necessary.

 The Group’s liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at  

From banks  12,096.29 
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gross and undiscounted:

(Rs.Lakhs)

Carrying 
amount

upto 5 years
 

5 years
Total

 7,331.01  -    7,354.88  -    7,354.88 

 1,096.68  -    1,009.29  228.35  1,237.64 

 5,415.70  -    5,415.70  -    5,415.70 

 Borrowings  42,168.98  42,168.98  -    -    42,168.98 

 Lease liabilities  436.22  555.09  -    -    555.09 

 Trade payables  27,476.43  27,476.43  -    -    27,476.43 

 4,318.60  4,318.60  -    -    4,318.60 

Total  88,243.62  74,519.10  13,779.87  228.35  88,527.32 

(Rs.Lakhs)

Carrying 
amount

upto 5 years
 

5 years
Total

 Borrowings 

 Lease liabilities 

 Trade payables 

Total

prices. Market risk comprises two types of risks: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return.The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the 
Group.

 Currency risk
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 Exposure to currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees 
(Lakhs) as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

USD EURO AUD

Advance to contractors

Trade payables

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

USD EURO AUD

 7,935.07  1,991.11  -    -   

Advance to contractors  8.58  2.92  1.75  -   

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    -   

 7,943.65  1,994.03  1.75  -   

Borrowings  1,347.38  68.08  -    0.62 

Trade payables  7,358.08  840.01  -    -   

 8,705.46  908.09  -    0.62 

 Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 

the year end.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores 
any impact of forecast sales and purchases.
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(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian 
Rupees against following foreign currencies:

 USD  0.95  (0.95)  0.62  (0.62)

 EUR  50.94  (50.94)  33.14  (33.14)

 GBP                 (0.01)  0.01  (0.00)  0.00 

 51.88  (51.88)  33.75  (33.75)

 USD  (7.62)  7.62  (4.96)  4.96 

 EUR  10.86  (10.86)  7.06  (7.06)

 AUD  0.02  (0.02)  0.01  (0.01)

 GBP                 (0.01)  0.01  (0.00) 0.00

 3.25  (3.25)  2.11  (2.11)

USD: United States Dollar, EUR: Euro, AUD: Australian Dollar, GBP: Great British Pound

transactions that are expected to occur within a period of 1 to 24 months for hedges of forecasted sales, purchases 
and capital expenditures. When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates 
the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions, the 

exposures are managed as per the policy, duly approved by the Board of Directors. The fair value is determined 
using quoted forward exchange rates at the reporting date and present value calculations based on high credit risk 
quality yield curves in the respective currency.

The following table details the foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Outstanding 
contracts

No of deals Contract value of 

As at  As at  As at  As at  As at  As at  As at  As at  

USD/INR Sell 
Forward

 21  68  75.70  6,261.90  -   

EUR/INR Sell 
Forward

 15  9  10.00  893.46  -   

EUR/USD Sell 
Forward

 8  10.18  880.11  -   

USD/INR Buy 
Forward

 1  1.00  82.40  -   

 Impact of depreciation / appreciation in INR against USD/EUR in respect of forward contracts is not material.
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 Interest rate risk

interest rates. The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose 

 Exposure to interest rate risk

borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period along with the 

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particular As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Bank Balances other than cash & cash equivalents  1,728.35 

 102.39 

Total  1,830.74 

Term loans  6,258.71 

Public deposits  916.56 

Term loans  7,625.64 

Cash credit  34,699.08 

Total  49,499.99 

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 

particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars

increase decrease increase decrease

Interest on term loans  (50.69)  50.69  (32.98)  32.98 

Interest on cash credits  (427.53)  427.53  (278.14)  278.14 

Interest on term loans  (76.26)  76.26  (49.61)  49.61 

Interest on cash credits  (346.99)  346.99  (225.74)  225.74 
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For the purposes of the Groups’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in the economic/ business 
conditions and requirements.

The  Group also monitors its capital structure through gearing ratio, represented by debt-equity ratio (Net debt/Total 

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Borrowings  49,499.99 

Less : Cash and cash equivalents  (784.24)

 48,715.75 

 71,666.74 

67.98%

The Group’s subsidiaries as at March 31, 2024 is set out below. The subsidiary has share capital consisting 
solely of equity shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals 
the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of 
business.

Name of 
entity

Place of 
 

country of 
incorporation interests as at

Principal activities

As at As at As at As at 

Daurala 
Foods and 
Beverages 
Private Limited

India  100.00  100.00  -    -   The entity deploys its surplus funds 
in permitted securities such as short 
term funds of mutual funds, bank 
deposits etc.

DCM Shriram 
Fine Chemicals 
Limited

India  100.00  100.00  -    -   The entity proposes to engage in 
business of manufacturing various 
chemicals.

DCM Shriram 
International 
Limited

India  100.00  100.00  -    -   The entity proposes to engaged in 
business of manufacturing, buying, 
selling, exchanging, converting, altering, 
importing, exporting, processing, twisting 
or otherwise handling or dealing in man 

cellulose rayon, nylon and to sell, 
purchase, import, export of civil and 
defence related equipment, armoured 
vehicles, unmanned aerial vehicles and 
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Name of entity  
country of 

incorporation

Principal activities

DHL Hyundai Limited India  49.28  49.28 The entity is primarily engaged 
in trading and promotion of 
fabricated engineering products 
and leasing of Machinery & 
Equipments, providing Technical 
Know-how, Marketing assistance 
and other services in relation 
thereto. 

those amounts.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars

As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents  447.15 

Other assets  1,598.60 

Total current assets  2,045.75 

 899.08 

Financial liabilities  17.79 

Other liabilities  26.11 

 43.89 

Other liabilities  2.55 

 2.55 

Net assets  2,898.38 
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Reconciliation to carrying amounts

(Rs.lakhs)

Particulars

As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Opening net assets  2,813.59 

 80.62 

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  4.17 

Closing net assets  2,898.38 

Group’s share in % 49.28%

Group’s share in INR  1,428.37 

Consolidation adjustments  (30.97)

Carrying amount  1,397.40 

(Rs.lakhs)

Particulars

As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations  222.39 

Other income  125.15 

Depreciation and amortisation  57.80 

Interest expense  10.89 

Income tax expense  32.59 

 80.62 

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  4.17 

Total comprehensive income/(expense)  84.79 

Dividends received  -   
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(Rs.Lakhs)

assets minus total 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount
consolidated 

Amount
consolidated 

income

Amount

income

Amount

Parent

DCM Shriram 
Industries Limited

March 31, 2023 93.31% 69,920.88 99.20% 6,026.04 100.87% (237.89) 99.13% 5,788.15

Daurala Foods & 
Beverages Private 
Limited

March 31, 2023 1.80% 1,345.33 0.73% 44.43 - - 0.76% 44.43

DCM Shriram Fine 
Chemicals Limited

March 31, 2023 3.03% 2,270.80 0.57% (34.85) - - 0.60% (34.85)

DCM Shriram 
International 

March 31, 2023 0.00% 0.74 0.01% (0.61) - - 0.01% (0.61)

Associate

DCM Hyundai 
Limited

March 31, 2023 1.86% 1,397.40 0.65% 39.73 -0.87% 2.05 0.72% 41.78

Total

March 31, 2023 100.00% 74,935.13 100.00% 6,074.75 100.00% (235.83) 100.00% 5,838.91

to consolidation

March 31, 2023 3,268.40 58.74 - 58.74

Consolidation 

after Tax

March 31, 2023 71,666.74 6,016.01 (235.84) 5,780.17
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51. Research and development expenses amounting to Rs. 617.10 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 491.48 lakhs) have been 
charged to the respective revenue accounts. Capital expenditure relating to research and development amounting 
to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 8.25 lakhs) has been included in property, plant and equipment.

52.

follows:
(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2023

(a)  Amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED (suppliers) 
as at the end of year.

-  Principal amount  1,215.71 

- Interest due thereon  -   

(b)   the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 
year.

 -   

(c)  the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed 

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006.

 -   

(d)  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounting year.

 -   

(e)  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 -   

  The government grants/government assistance recognised are as under:

(Rs. Lakhs)

Nature of grant/assistance Income/ For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Subvention on loans interest Other income  108.26 

Interest subsidy in respect of loans at concessional 
rate

Other income  182.55 

Duty drawback and other incentives (net of 
provision)

Other operating 
revenue

 1,057.57 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Amount 
as on  

Amount 
as on  

director or 
relative of 

promoter/director 
or employee 
of promoter/

director

Property 

Holding Company

Land situated at Daurala, Uttar 
Pradesh (UP).

379.04 No 1991 Vested in the Holding 
company pursuant to a 
Scheme of Arrangement 
of erstwhile DCM 
Limited. (Undisputed)

Land situated at  Kota, 
Rajasthan

465.00 No 1991 Vested in the Holding 
company pursuant to a 
Scheme of Arrangement 
of erstwhile DCM 
Limited. (Undisputed)

Land situated at Daurala, UP 44.95 No 2005 Vested in the Holding 
company pursuant 
to merger of Daurala 
Organics Limited 
under sections 
391 to 394 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 
in terms of approval of 
Honorable High Court. 
(Undisputed)

Total 888.99

55. Consequent to introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from July 1, 2017, there has been ambiguity 
with regard to chargeability of indirect tax, i.e., UP VAT or GST or any other tax, on certain supplies made to a party 
and, therefore, no tax has been charged on invoices raised for such supplies. The Hon’ble Allahabad High Court in 
the year 2021-22 has held that no VAT is chargeable on such transactions. However, this issue is sub-judice before 
the Hon’ble Supreme Court in a similar matter. The buyer has provided an undertaking to indemnify the Holding 

determined in this regard.

The State VAT Authorities had completed assessments for the periods July 1, 2017 to October 31, 2020 and raised 
demands on the Holding Company. These assessments have been cancelled after the Hon’ble Allahabad High 
Court order, except for the year ended March 31, 2020, which is pending disposal before the VAT Tribunal, and the 
VAT demand raised amounting to Rs. 6,528.32 lakhs in respect of that year has been stayed by the Tribunal. The 
Holding Company has deposited  amounts aggregating Rs.3,417.52 lakhs under protest in respect of the aforesaid 
VAT matters for the periods July 1, 2017 to October 31, 2020. 

During the previous year, GST demands aggregating Rs. 29,617.47 lakhs were raised in relation to these transactions 

being contested. The Holding Company has deposited amounts aggregating Rs.2,249.50 lakhs as of March 31, 
2024 (Rs. 1,891.66 lakhs as at March 31, 2023) as duty under protest in respect of GST, shown as ‘Government 
dues paid and recoverble’ under ‘Other non-current assets’.

Further, GST Council in its meeting dated October 7, 2023 has ceded the right to tax such supplies to State 
Governments. However, State 
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accounting treatment in respect of the transactions as in previous year(s) and the Holding Company has recognized 
a provision for contingencies of Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs as at March 31, 
2023) under “Provisions (current). Basis the undertaking from the buyer, the Holding Company has recognized 
corresponding reimbursement assets amounting to Rs. 30,580.42 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. 26,312.70 lakhs 

The amounts aggregating Rs. 5,667.02 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs.5,309.18 lakhs as at March 31, 2023) paid 
under protest have been shown as recoverable under “Other non-current assets with corresponding amount shown 

The carrying amount of assets charged as security for current and non-current borrowings are as under:  
   (Rs.Lakhs)

Note As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Current assets
Inventories 11  63,482.91 
Trade receivables 13  24,224.22 
Cash and cash equivalents 14  297.39 
Other bank balances 15  480.23 
Loans 16  8.99 

17  479.41 
Other current assets 18  1,655.73 

 90,628.87 

Property, plant and equipment 3  59,250.32 
Capital work-in progress 3  220.61 
Intangible assets 4  238.16 
Loans 7  32.68 

8  462.57 
Income-tax assets (net) 9  78.77 
Other non-current assets 10  96.57 

 60,379.68 
 1,51,008.55 

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 14 November, 2023 approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement 

Shriram International Limited (wholly owned subsidiaries of DCM Shriram Industries Limited), and Lily Commercial 
Private Limited, for amalgamation of Lily Commercial Private Limited with DCM Shriram Industries Limited, and 
subsequent demerger of Chemical and Rayon businesses of DCM Shriram Industries Limited into DCM Shriram Fine 
Chemicals Limited and DCM Shriram International Limited, respectively, with effect from the appointed date of 1 April 
2023, subject to regulatory and statutory approvals, as applicable. The Scheme is presently under consideration of 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). Pending the necessary approvals, which are 

measured at lower of the carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the reporting date.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at  
March 31, 2023

Building  33.87  33.87 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Particulars Numerator Denominator

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities  1.2  1.2 3.3%

(b) Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity  0.6  0.7  (9.1)%

(c) Debt Service Coverage Earnings available Scheduled Debt 
Service

 2.4  1.4 69.8%

taxes
Average 
Shareholder’s Equity

15.1% 8.7% 73.9%

Cost of goods sold Average Inventory  1.8  2.5  (28.5)%

(f) Trade Receivable Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue Average Trade 
Receivables

 8.0  9.5  (15.4)%

(g) Trade Payable Turnover 
Ratio

Purchases and 
other expenses

Average Trade 
Payables

 5.8  6.6  (12.1)%

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio^ Revenue Working Capital  7.8  12.3  (36.5)%

Total Income 5.5% 2.5% 115.8%

Earning before 
interest and taxes

Average Capital 
Employed #

22.0% 13.5% 62.8%

(k) Return on Investment@ "Income generated 
from 
investments"

"Time weighted 
average 
investments"

7.3% 5.6% 29.7%

# Tangible net worth + Long term debt + Deferred tax liabilities 

@ Increase on account of change in yield.

^ Decrease mainly due to lower revenue

i)  The Group does not have any benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated against the Company for 
holding any benami property.

ii)  The Group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

iii)  Details of charges / satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC).

Pending 
Satisfaction/
Registration

Location of 
Registrar

Amount of Reason for delay in satisfaction

Satisfaction A charge created with 
serial number R36032811, 
charge ID 80000572 on 
31st March 1978 and 

on 18th March 2020 in 
favour of Oriental bank 
of Commerce, Transport 
Nagar, UP-250002, India.

New Delhi  2,450.00 "The loan has been repaid fully on the 

been received from the lender. Requisite 
 

The said charge was created in FY 1978 
(by erstwhile DCM Ltd) and was transferred 
to the Company in the year 1990 pursuant 
to reconstruction arrangement of erstwhile 
DCM Ltd. There is a technical issue at ROC 
for online updation of satisfaction which is 
under discussion with ROC."
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v)  The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

vi)  The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

vii)  The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or 
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

are approved by the Board of Directors.

Accordingly, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) 
has one CIC remaining as part of the Group.

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

 
associate companies/joint ventures

1. Sl. No. 1

2. Name of the subsidiary Daurala Foods & 
Beverages Pvt. Ltd.

3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 6th February, 2007

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

N.A.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

6. Share Capital 7,50,00,000

7. Reserves & Surplus 6,58,45,170

8. Total assets 14,09,16,570

9. Total Liabilities 14,09,16,570

10. Investments -

11. Turnover 93,85,810

12. 85,24,140

13. Provision for taxation 22,11,570

14. 63,12,570

15. Proposed Dividend -

16. % of shareholding 100%

1. Sl. No. 2

2. Name of the subsidiary DCM Shriram Fine 
Chemicals Ltd.

3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 29th September, 2021

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

N.A.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

6. Share Capital 20,00,00,000

7. Reserves & Surplus 6,47,32,000

8. Total assets 26,48,58,000

9. Total Liabilities 26,48,58,000

10. Investments -

11. Turnover Nil

12. (34,76,000)

13. Provision for taxation Nil

14. (34,76,000)

15. Proposed Dividend -

16. % of shareholding 100%
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1. Sl. No. 3

2. Name of the subsidiary DCM Shriram International Ltd.

3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 7th September, 2022

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

N.A.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

6. Share Capital 1,00,000

7. Reserves & Surplus (1,50,189)

8. Total assets 53,711

9. Total Liabilities 53,711

10. Investments -

11. Turnover Nil

12. (1,23,756)

13. Provision for taxation Nil

14. (1,23,756)

15. Proposed Dividend -

16. % of shareholding 100%

 
 

              (Rs.)

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2024

2. Date on which the Associate was associated July 17, 1995

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end :
 - No.
 - Amount of Investment in Associates /Joint Venture
 - Extent of Holding %

19,72,000
Rs.1,66,00,005/-

49.28%

Holding more than 20%
Equity Share Capital

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A.

6. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 14,53,68,246/-

 i. Considered in Consolidation 25,36,080/-

 ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 26,10,186/-

Note : DCM Shriram Fine Chemicals Ltd. and DCM Shriram International Limited, both wholly owned subsidiaries, are yet 
to commence operations. No subsidiaries or associate companies have been sold or liquidated during the year. 

Chartered Accountants Vineet Manaktala S.B. Mathur  

ICAI Firm Registration no.: Chairman  
101248W/W-100022 DIN: 09145644 DIN: 00013239 

Alok B. Shriram Madhav B. Shriram 

Sr. Managing Director Managing Director 

Partner DIN: 00203808 DIN: 00203521 
Membership No.: 090075 Y.D. Gupta Urvashi Tilakdhar 

Vice President  & Company Secretary Wholetime Director 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi DIN: 00294265 

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024


